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Chairman’s Statement

ERE®E

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company”), | am pleased to present the audited consolidated
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Our Group's turnover decreased from approximately HK$650.4
million in 2019 to approximately HK$587.1 million in 2020,
representing a decrease of approximately 9.7%. Gross profit was
approximately HK$136.5 million in 2020, representing a
decrease of approximately 8.0% from that of 2019. Profit
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company was
approximately HK$38.7 million in 2020, representing a decrease
of approximately 30.8% from that of 2019. Decrease in net
profit was primarily due to the periodic suspension in global
economic activities as a result of the impact of the outbreak of
the novel coronavirus disease (the “COVID-19").

Printed circuit board (the “"PCB") is the bridge that carries
electronic components and connects to the circuit. Therefore,
many people describe PCB as the “the mother of electronic
products”. It is widely used in the fields of communication
electronics, consumer electronics, computers, automotive
electronics, industrial controller, medical devices, national
defense and aerospace, etc. It is everywhere around modern
electronic world. Due to the wide market of downstream
consumers of PCB products, this industry is less affected as
compared to other industries with a single downstream industry,
and the total output value of the global PCB industry is mainly
closely related to the macroeconomic conditions.

In 2020, the outbreak of COVID-19, which is currently affecting
the macro economy, took place in the PRC (as the severely
afflicted area) in the early stage of the Chinese New Year in early
2020. The Chinese government initially implements lockdown
policy and restriction on movement of manpower and materials,
resulting in setbacks and delays of the economic and public
affairs activities. Due to proper control, the pandemic in
Mainland China stabilized. Only a few cases occurred from time
to time, it can be said that people’s life and the economy return
to normal. On the contrary, the pandemic is not under control,
but spreads continuously, and becomes more and more severe
all over the world and the global economy declines significantly,
even contracts. Among the major economies, the International
Monetary Fund (“IMF"”) estimated that only China will have
positive growth in 2020. As a number of vaccines are approved
for use in early 2021, the economy is expected to recover, and
the PCB industry will be able to rise and seize new development
opportunities.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERERE

The PCBs continue to enjoy extensive applications, which cover
3C products, Internet-of-Things, self-driving vehicles, big data,
automotive electronization and electrification, and more. The
development of every application will drive the demand for PCBs.
In particular, the application of 5G technology and the
development of electrical vehicles will require a massive supply
of PCBs, ushering in a wonderful business opportunity.

Last but not least, | would like to take this opportunity to extend
my sincere gratitude to all fellow Directors, management and
our staff for their unwavering dedication and contribution to our
Group's development. | would also like to thank all of our
shareholders, for their trust and continuous support over a
challenging but rewarding 2020.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Chan Wing Yin

Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2021
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Financial Highlights

MBERE

For the year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=1+—HLEE

2019 Change
—E-NF &
Results HK$'000 (%)
B4 FHT
Revenue Wz 650,408 (9.7)
Profit before tax 4 B Bz ) 68,056 (25.7)
Profit attributable to ordinary equity RAREBESFEEA
holders of the Company FEAE & A 55,901 (30.8)
Basic earnings per share G EARZF HK23.3 cents
(expressed in HK cents per share) (AFREELER) el (30.9)
Diluted earnings per share FREERF HK23.3 cents
(expressed in HK cents per share) (AFBBLZIR) il (30.9)
Dividend per share BRRS Nil N/A
(expressed in HK cents per share) (ATRBWT)R) i3 TEA

As at 31 December

R+=ZA=+-—H
2019 Change
—E-NF #E)
Financial Position HK$'000 (%)
B R AR FET
Total assets BE®E 847,150 14.9
Net debts (excluding cash and bank FER(TEERE N
balances, pledged deposits and RiTEES - DA
restricted cash) FRARZREEIES) (76,631) 253.6
Shareholders’ equity I B = 534,852 13.5
Net assets per share BREEFE
(expressed in HK$ per share) (LAEREETTYR) 2.23 13.6
Net debts to total assets FEBHEERE (9.0)% 208.9
Net debts to shareholders’ equity FERE IR EER (14.3)% 94.4
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Financial Summary

MEHE

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=1+—HLEE

in HK$'000 2019 2018 2017 2016
FET —F2-hF ZEBE-NF EBE—+F E—FF
RESULTS E4
Revenue Wz 650,408 766,006 633,572 591,407
Profit before tax R A 68,056 81,550 29,246 30,413
Income tax expense FrigFiF X (12,155) (23,157) (4,971) (7,030)
Profit for the year F N A 55,901 58,393 24,275 23,383
As at 31 December
R+=-—HA=+-—H
in HK$'000 2019 2018 2017 2016
FETT —F-hF ZE-N\F ZE—+tF ZE—RF
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EBEREE
Total assets BELE 847,150 939,135 888,256 829,988
Total liabilities BE®E 312,298 427,482 407,836 408,159
Net assets BESE 534,852 511,653 480,420 421,829
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERBNWmR DN

The printed circuit board, also known as “PCB”, is mainly
comprised of insulation base materials and conductors. PCBs,
which support and connect electronic devices as they provide
connection between electric components, are components
required to combine a majority of electronic devices with
electronics, machines, and chemical materials. They are also
given the name of “the mother of electronic products”.

In 2020, under the backdrop of the novel coronavirus pandemic
(COVID-19) and complicated international relations, the global
economy declined sharply. According to the International
Monetary Fund (“IMF"), the economy contracted by about 3.5%
in 2020. Since a number of novel coronavirus vaccines were
approved for use in early 2021, the pandemic is expected to be
alleviated gradually. However, with the possibility of the new
round of pandemic and the emergence of mutant viruses, the
economic development has still been adversely affected. Under
the circumstances of uncertainty, IMF predicts that the global
economy will grow by 5.5% and 4.2% in 2021 and 2022,
respectively.

In 2019, under the effect of trade friction, decline in terminal
demand and exchange rate depreciation, the output value of
PCBs in the global market amounted to US$61.3 billion.
Although the novel coronavirus in 2020 has an impact on the
industry, the rapid development of 5G has given the PCB
industry more room for growth. The research report predicts that
the output value of PCBs in the global market will amount to
US$62.5 billion in 2020 and will reach US$79.2 billion by 2025.

The PCB industry has been long established, with its early
presence mainly distributed in Europe, North America, and
Japan. Due to global migration of the electronics sector, Asia
takes the lead in the PCB industry development on the globe.
According to the information available, the output value of PCBs
in the PRC was approximately US$32.9 billion in 2019,
accounting for approximately 53.7% of the global share.

A PCB is a component necessary for electronic products. With
continuous technology advancements, the demand for PCBs is
steady and is expected to continue to grow. The range of
application of PCBs is extensive, including communication
electronics, consumer electronics, computers, automotive
electronics , industrial controller, medical devices, national
defense and aerospace and other fields. In recent years, driven
by the demands of emerging sectors such as 5G, new energy
vehicles, Internet-of-Things, big data, cloud computing, energy
conservation and environmental protection, and information
security, good business opportunities will be brought to the PCB
market.

Automobile electronics become a global trend, which promotes
the rapid growth of automobile PCBs. PCBs are widely used in
engine, control, safety, information and in-vehicle systems.
Compared with conventional vehicles, the requirement of
electronics for new energy vehicle is higher. In view of the
immense effort in promoting the development of new energy
vehicle by countries around the world, it shall create tremendous
business opportunities to the PCB market in the future.

8 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020

ENmEEEIR - XA [PCB) T EMBHEEM HGRM
BMEAEK - PCBREEFILaITERNERE  AE

REPEXE BENER THESETF B
EIMHEBAZHEFRBERBTIOTH - XK
WRIEFEMZIE]-

R -TEEHRTIFAR(COVID-19) 15 &1 5 1) BB
BEMRET  2REERETNE  BREEEES
A (TIMFD I T T F B ERA3.5% ° /@
REZZE-—FYZHHNEREEEREFER 7L
RIBEEEN  BINMEEH — KRB RERNTTRE - i1
FTEBREMNHE  HHEESERENTANEE £
ETBEEMBERT  IMFIERT 2 EREEE 2021 F M
2022 F DRI R 5.5% M4.2% °

019 EBHER - RinHRTBRMERTESZY
Z . 2IRMISHPCBEMEAG13EEIT - 2020 F #H T
PEREITERBMTE  B5GHIRIREREPCBITE
I R =R INK - B RS TR 2020 F 2 Bk
S HIPCBEER A625EF L £2025F EF|79218
E I

PCBITERREA  FFLTENMABM - &£5X - B
AL HMEEREFEXEYL  DMNEIE2IPBE
R -RBABSENER  —T—-NFHBIPCBE
B#R329185KTC » 2IIEAI53.7% °

PCBIEREFTEmMT MNABA T - BBERBUKF
BTETRT - BB RRTFEEHBEER - HEAEY
ZE G BETBAET HEET FEK. TEE
T TEES - BRaEm - B R ERREE
TR BEE SG ~ MTEEIRITE - WA - ABE B
AEHRERR  ERLXEEMERETRNTEE
PCB 5 AR A R 1T TN SR AV R o

ABEEFILRARBMEB  HHTEPBREER &

MERBEAS BARG  Z2ER GERELRK
BEARBEARESE - HAHKD PCBRHLE - HLLE

MEVAE MR AEHEFREENERES  BE
BEBEIERNHEBHERTENER - AT RARKPCBT
5 KR o



Management Discussion and Analysis

BERBNWmR DN

The new applications of PCBs will further drive the development
of the PCB industry. The 5G deployment will significantly
advance the progress of the PCB industry. In 2020, 5G PCB
orders focused on base station construction. With the
establishment of a complete 5G network, the next step is to
accelerate the formation of the consumer 5G electronics industry
chain. It is expected that prospect will emerge in the PCB market.

Although the PCB market has an encouraging prospect, it also
faces numerous difficulties. As the PRC government has
strengthened its efforts on environmental protection,
manufacturing enterprises that fail to meet the requirements will
be subject to rectification, or even replacement or suspension.
As a result, compliant PCB manufacturers are required to
increase investments in environmental engineering and
wastewater treatment capacities, which undoubtedly adds
weight on their operating costs.

The COVID-19 outbreak in early 2020, which has spread across
China with worldwide infection, has caused material impact on a
wide range of economic activities. The operation of PCB
manufacturers is unavoidably affected. Although a number of
vaccines have been approved for use worldwide in 2021, their
effectiveness has yet to be evaluated, and the seriousness of the
negative impact in the future will depend on the development of
the pandemic.

Against the capacity expansion launched by many PCB
manufacturers amid a growing number of new PCB
manufacturers in recent years, as well as the failure of
production and technology capacities to meet market demands,
the market has eventually become aggressive, with the possibility
of triggering a fierce pricing competition. With the unit price
being adjusted downwards, the slim profit margin will further
shrink.

The labor costs in China have been on the rise over the past
decade, as corporate expenditure rises due to full
implementation of policies on social security and public housing
fund. A phenomenon of “recruitment difficulty, labor shortage”
often appears in the developed coastal areas, in which case,
recruitment of frontline employees, particularly seasoned
technicians, becomes increasingly difficult. As a result, many
domestic PCB enterprises gradually relocate their production
bases to inland provinces and cities, or comprehensive reform to
accelerate the process of production automation and
intellectualization to reduce the dependence on manpower and
ensure the stability of quality.

The price increase of raw materials is a problem that PCB
manufacturers have generally faced since the second half of
2020. The reason behind is the continuous impact of the novel
coronavirus pandemic on production capacity and freight. The
contradiction between the supply and demand of upstream raw
materials such as copper foil, resin and aluminum sheet was
prominent. Its price began to rise sharply in mid 2020, which
forced PCB material manufacturers to decide to adjust product
prices due to cost pressure, which would then be passed down
to PCB manufacturers. There would be even tight supply of raw
materials, and the situation of shortages and price increase in
raw materials will continue for a period of time in 2021.

PCB¥TIE A FaEAEB)PCBIT X R  SGEB B AKX
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MAT BEREMSGHEMBEY  mT—2F  HELE

g%f%é%iﬁﬂbu@%;ﬂz  JEEAPCB TS A B —
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERBNWmR DN

The Group is an original equipment manufacturer (“"OEM")
provider of PCBs and focused on the production of quality PCBs,
which meet industrial standards such as IPC Standards, as well as
the customers’ requirement.

We focused on the conventional PCBs with a well-developed
capacity to produce multi-layered and special material PCBs with
primary applications in cars, communication equipment, medical
devices, industrial automation equipment and consumer
electronics.

Our continuous diversification of product mix and market
coverage allow the Group to swiftly cater for the changes in
demand from certain sectors and adjust our production output
accordingly, resulting in reduced reliance on a single product and
market. Benefited from the enormous business opportunities
generated from automobile electronics in recent years, the
proportion of our revenue generated from this section is
correspondingly higher.

Over the past 31 years of our operation, the Group has
established a solid foundation and close relationship with our
customers. The Group provided direct and indirect services to
OEM customers across Asia, Europe, Africa, North America,
South America and Oceania, who are engaged in various
industries with many of them running in a multinational model.
Certain of our major OEM customers are leading players in their
markets. The Group supplied PCB products directly to a number
of leading electronic manufacturing service providers, in order to
assemble finished goods of OEM for the Group’s indirect OEM
customers. To date, the Group has built up long-term
relationship with major customers, and some of them have been
working with us for over a decade. The Company believed that
these customers also considered the Group as their important
partner for their supply chain. Therefore, our profound and long-
term relationship with customers will enable the Group to know
the trend of customers’ demand more quickly.

The Group is of the view that product and process quality are
integral to its business. The Group complies with various
international quality standards and systems, including ISO9001,
ISO14001 and IATF16949 certifications. The Group has put in
place a number of quality measures and simplification plan to
promote a culture of quality product. Quality is of paramount
importance to the business of the Group and is regularly
reviewed and improved by dedicated personnel to enhance
customer satisfaction. In addition, the Group obtained AS9100
certification in 2009 to qualify for the provision of advanced and
reliable PCBs for the aerospace industry. This is a testament to
our product quality.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERBNWmR DN

The high production cost continues to affect the PCB industry in
current year. Followed by the sweep of emission limits and
environmental protection measures across China, PCB
manufacturers are facing steep challenges. As a PCB
manufacturer, the Group needs to formulate appropriate
responses and increase the capital input in respect of
environmental protection resulting in the set-off of part of the
profits of the Group. However, viewing from another
perspective, manufacturers failing to meet the required standards
would be eliminated or would have to enhance their operation
cost in order to comply with the required standards, whereas the
Group has realized the need for environmental protection and
has made relevant investment many years ago. Therefore,
compared with those failing to meet the standards, the Group is
under less pressure in such new setting in the PCB market and
better positioned to seize opportunities.

Although China remains to be the “World Factory”, labor costs
are no longer as low as a decade before and have gradually
increased. In addition, the labor supply is insufficient in the
coastal areas. The Group enhanced its production automation,
promoted the use and flow of production information,
optionized and improved costs and quality which could
eventually lead the Group to develop towards intelligent
production in the future.

In 2020, the biggest challenge of the Company was the
numerous problems caused by the COVID-19. The production
schedule was affected under the limitation of initial lockdown
policy of the Chinese government and limited movement of
manpower and resources. Some customers have also delayed
delivery for their orders when the pandemic spread worldwide.
Fortunately, the domestic pandemic was gradually under control
and production has returned to normal. Although the pandemic
outside China has not yet controlled, orders have not decreased
significantly.

The follow-up arrangement of the existing production base was
an important issue in 2020. The Group has been concentrating
on its PCB business for over 30 years, in which the accumulated
experience and networks allow the Group to make further
development in the PCB market. With the rapid progress of the
urbanization in Shenzhen, the Shenzhen Pingshan District
Government has also made strategic planning for promoting its
local development. Given the increased labor costs in Shenzhen
and the need to maintain competitiveness and respond to the
future change in the planned use of the current production area
of Yan Tat Printed Circuits (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd., after
consultation with the Board and the professional advisers, the
Group plans to establish another production base in the Greater
Bay Area to support the long-term development of the Group.
Apart from the headquarter in China and the research and
development department which will remain located in Pingshan
District, Shenzhen, the bulk production capacity of the Group
will be relocated gradually to the new production base. The
Group entered into a cooperation agreement with independent
parties in relation to the urban renewal project located at the
current production area in Pingshan District. At the same time,
the Group will also consider opportunities to maximize
shareholders’ benefits from time to time.
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in HK$'000 2019
FHET — N
Turnover ] 650,408
Gross profit ESVY 148,390
Earnings before interest, taxes, FLE - BIE - IWEREEIAT

depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDA") ([EBITDA) 103,574
Net profit pany| 55,901

The Group's turnover for the year of 2020 was approximately
HK$587.1 million, representing a decrease of approximately
9.7% compared to that of the last year, which was primarily
attributable to the decrease in sales orders and the delayed
delivery for certain orders demanded by customers due to the
periodic suspension in global economic activities as a result of
the impact of the outbreak of COVID-19.

The Group’s gross profit for the year of 2020 was approximately
HK$136.5 million, representing a decrease of approximately
8.0% compared to that of the last year, primarily due to
decrease in sales and production in volume. Gross profit margin
slightly increased by approximately 0.5% to 23.3% from 22.8%.

The Group's total operating expenses for the year of 2020 were
approximately HK$95.1 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 2.0% compared to approximately HK$97.0 million
for the last year, primarily due to the decrease in selling and
distribution expenses.

The Group’s EBITDA amounted to approximately HK$82.6
million for the year of 2020 as compared to approximately
HK$103.6 million for the last year.

The Group recorded a profit attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company of approximately HK$38.7 million for
the year of 2020 as compared to approximately HK$55.9 million
for the last year.

Other income and gains

Other income and gains decreased by approximately HK$4.7
million, or 20.5%, to approximately HK$18.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 from approximately HK$22.9 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019, primarily due to the net
effect of (1) the decrease in foreign exchange gain of
approximately HK$3.5 million, (2) the decrease in realisation of
exchange fluctuation reserve upon deregistration of a subsidiary
of approximately HK$5.3 million, and (3) the increase in
government grants of approximately HK$3.3 million.
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Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses decreased by approximately
HK$4.2 million, or 22.1%, to approximately HK$14.8 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020 from approximately HK$19.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2019. The decrease was
primarily due to decrease in commission and transportation cost.

General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses increased by approximately
HK$2.3 million, or 2.9%, to approximately HK$80.3 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020 from approximately HK$78.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2019. The increase was
primarily due to the net effect of (1) the increase in foreign
exchange losses of approximately HK$5.9 million, (2) the
increase in legal and professional fee of approximately HK$5.1
million, (3) the increase in research and development costs of
approximately HK$1.4 million, (4) the decrease in consultant
expense of approximately HK$5.0 million, (5) the decrease in
central pension scheme expenses of approximately HK$2.0
million, (6) the decrease in staff welfare expense of
approximately HK$1.2 million, and (7) the decrease in traveling
expenses of approximately HK$1.7 million.

Other expenses

Loss on disposal of old machinery amounted to approximately
HK$3.1 million and write-off of old machinery amounted to
approximately HK$4.0 million were incurred during the current
year. As a result, other expenses increased by approximately
HK$7.1 million, to approximately HK$7.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 from approximately HK$0.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Finance costs

Finance costs decreased by approximately HK$4.3 million, or
70.5%, to approximately HK$1.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 from approximately HK$6.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019. The decrease was primarily due to
the decrease in the amount of bank loans interest resulting from
the decrease in the amount of bank borrowings during the year.

Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company

The Group recorded profit attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the Company of approximately HK$38.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 compared to approximately HK$55.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2019, representing a
decrease of approximately 30.8%. The decrease of profit
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company was
mainly due to the net effect of the decrease in gross profit of
approximately HK$11.9 million, the decrease in other income
and gains of approximately HK$4.7 million, the decrease in
selling and distribution expenses of approximately HK$4.2
million, the increase in general and administrative expenses of
approximately HK$2.3 million, the increase in other expense of
approximately HK$7.1 million, and the decrease in finance costs
of approximately HK$4.3 million.
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Property, plant and equipment

The net carrying amount as at 31 December 2020 was
approximately HK$359.7 million, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$3.2 million from that of 31 December 2019.
This was mainly due to the net effect of (i) depreciation of
approximately HK$29.8 million with respect to the Group’s
property, plant and equipment in the current year, (ii) increase in
exchange realignment of approximately HK$23.0 million, (iii)
total additions and transfer in during the year of approximately
HK$14.1 million, and (iv) total disposals and write-off during the
year of approximately HK$10.5 million.

Trade and bills receivables

There was an increase in trade and bills receivables of
approximately HK$17.7 million as at 31 December 2020 as
compared to that of 31 December 2019, which was mainly due
to the rise in sales in the fourth quarter of 2020 as compared to
the fourth quarter of 2019. For further details, please refer to
note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

Trade and bills payables

There was an increase in trade and bills payables as at 31
December 2020 of approximately HK$13.3 million as compared
to that of 31 December 2019, which was mainly due to the
increase of trade payables caused by the rise in sales in the
fourth quarter of 2020 as well as purchases. For further details,
please refer to note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

Bank and other borrowings

The Group had bank and other borrowings as at 31 December
2020 in the sum of approximately HK$5.5 million, representing a
decrease of approximately HK$78.7 million from the sum of
approximately HK$84.2 million as at 31 December 2019. The
decrease in borrowings was mainly due to repayment of
borrowings. No financial instruments were used for hedging
purposes, nor were there any foreign currency net investments
hedged by current borrowings and/or other hedging instruments.
For further details, please refer to note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had current assets of
approximately HK$563.1 million (2019: HK$437.5 million)
including cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits and
restricted cash totalling approximately HK$276.5 million (2019:
HK$160.9 million). As at 31 December 2020, the Group had
non-current liabilities of approximately HK$155.8 million (2019:
HK$35.7 million), and its current liabilities amounted to
approximately HK$210.5 million (2019: HK$276.6 million),
consisting mainly of payables arising in the normal course of
operations and bank borrowings for financing of production
facilities. Accordingly, the Group’s current ratio, being the ratio
of current assets to current liabilities, was around 2.7 as at 31
December 2020 (2019: 1.6).
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Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio of the Group, calculated as total borrowings
over total equity, was approximately 0.01 as at 31 December
2020 (2019: approximately 0.2).

Treasury policies

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management
approach towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a
healthy liquidity position throughout the year of 2020. The Group
strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing
credit assessments and evaluations of the financial status of its
customers. To manage liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors
the Group's liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure
of the Group's assets, liabilities and other commitments can meet
its funding requirements from time to time.

Foreign exchange exposure

As at 31 December 2020, we had cash and cash equivalents,
pledged deposits, trade and bills receivables, trade and bills
payables, other payables and interest-bearing bank borrowings
which are denominated in currencies other than Hong Kong
dollar, and consequently we have foreign exchange exposure
from translation of amounts denominated in foreign currencies
as at the reporting date. During the year ended 31 December
2020, the Group did not engage in any derivatives activities and
did not commit to any financial instruments to hedge its foreign
currency exposure.

Capital structure

There has been no change in the capital structure of the
Company during the current and last years. The capital of the
Company is comprised of ordinary shares and capital reserves.

Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2020, capital commitments of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$1.5 million (2019: HK$2.1
million).

Dividend

The Board recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK6.0
cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:
nil).

The proposed dividend is subject to approval by the shareholders
of the Company at the annual general meeting to be held on
Friday, 21 May 2021 and, if approved, is expected to be paid on
or about Wednesday, 23 June 2021 to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on
Wednesday, 2 June 2021. The dividend is declared and will be
paid in HKD.
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Dividend Policy

The Board regularly reviews and manages its capital structure to
ensure an optimal capital structure and shareholder returns
when its dividend policy considers:

o the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;
o retained profits and distributable reserves of the Group;

o return on equity and other corresponding restrictions of
the Group;

o the Group’s capital requirement and surplus;
o the Group'’s liquidity position;

o general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group's
business and internal or external factors that may have an
impact on the business, financial results and position of
the Company; and

. other factors that the Board deems relevant.

The Board will continue to review the Group's dividend policy
from time to time and there can be no assurance that dividends
will be paid in any particular amount for any given period.

The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions under
the applicable laws and the Company’s Articles of Association.

Closure of the Register of Members

To determine the eligibility of the shareholders of the Company
to attend the annual general meeting of the Company ("AGM")
to be held on Friday, 21 May 2021, the register of members will
be closed from Monday, 17 May 2021 to Friday, 21 May 2021,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares
will be effected. In order to be entitled to attend and vote at the
AGM, all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong
branch share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited, Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 14 May 2021.

In addition, to determine shareholders’ entitlement to the
dividend, the register of members will be closed from Monday,
31 May 2021 to Wednesday, 2 June 2021, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In
order to qualify for the entitlements to the dividend, all
completed transfers documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong
Kong branch share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited,
Level 54, Hopewell Centre,183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong,
for registration not later than 4:30 pm on Friday, 28 May 2021.
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Information on employees

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 739 employees (2019:
977 employees), including the executive Directors. Total
employee benefit expense (including Directors’ remuneration)
was approximately HK$80.0 million, as compared to
approximately HK$103.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2019. Remuneration is determined with reference to market
norms and individual employee’s performance, qualification and
experience.

On top of basic salaries, bonuses may be paid by reference to
the Group’s performance as well as the individual’s performance.
Other staff benefits include contributions to Mandatory Provident
Fund scheme in Hong Kong, and various welfare plans including
the provision of pension funds, medical insurance and other
relevant insurance for employees of our Group.

The salaries and benefits of the Group’s employees are kept at a
competitive level and employees are rewarded on a
performance-related basis within the general framework of the
Group's salary and bonus system, which is reviewed annually.
The Group also operates a share option scheme adopted by the
Company on 18 November 2014 (“Share Option Scheme”)
where options to subscribe for shares may be granted to the
Directors and employees of the Group.

Details of the Share Option Scheme are disclosed in the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” on pages 46 to 48 of this
annual report.

The Company did not grant any share option under the Share
Option Scheme during the current and prior years. Details of
remuneration of Directors and chief executive and the five
highest paid individuals of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020 are set out in note 8 and note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Significant investments held
As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not hold any significant
investment.

Future plans for material investments and capital
assets

Other than those disclosed in this annual report on 8 May 2020,
the Group has entered into, amongst others, a cooperation
agreement for the urban renewal project located at our
production base in Pingshan District, Shenzhen, the PRC. The
entering into of the cooperation agreement and the transactions
thereunder have been approved by the shareholders of the
Company at the extraordinary general meeting on 14 July 2020.
For details, please refer to the Company’s announcements dated
15 May 2020 and 14 July 2020, and the circular dated 24 June
2020. Also, currently the Group is exploring the opportunity and
proactively discussing with independent third parties in relation
to the investment of the establishment of a Greater Bay Area
production base for the production of PCBs.
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Material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures

On 8 May 2020, the Group has entered into a cooperation
agreement with an independent third party on a disposal of
certain parcels of land located in Pingshan New District,
Shenzhen, with certain parcels of the land being used by the
Group for the production of PCB, through disposal of
subsidiaries of the Group and/or disposal of the relevant land
and properties in relation to an urban renewal project. As at the
date of this annual report, as Urban Renewal Approval (32858
fX) has not yet been obtained, the disposals have not
materialised. For further details, please refer to Company’'s
announcements dated 15 May 2020 and 14 July 2020, and the
circular dated 24 June 2020.

Save as disclosed above and those disclosed in this annual report,
the Group did not have any material acquisitions and disposals
of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.

Charges on assets

As at 31 December 2020, certain assets of the Group as set out
below were charged to secure banking facilities granted to the
Group:

()  the Group's investment property amounting to
approximately HK$6.7 million (2019: HK$6.5 million).

(i)  pledged deposits with banks amounting to approximately
HK$31.8 million (2019: HK$31.4 million).

Contingent liabilities
The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2020 (2019: Nil).
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Prospects

COVID-19 has spread worldwide and severely affected the
economy and people’s livelihood. In early 2012, various places
began to vaccinate their citizens. With the widespread
application of vaccines, the pandemic is expected to alleviated,
but it will still take a long time for the economic and people’s
livelihood to resume to the situation before the pandemic. The
US First policy and the policy of suppressing Chinese corporates
will not be changed immediately after Donald Trump stepped
down. We have to wait and observe the impact of the policies
towards China under the new administrative. The major
challenge in 2021 is cost control. At the end of the year, the
prices of various major raw materials such as copper clad
laminates, prepregs, copper foils have risen sharply, and will
continue to rise in the new year. This has reduced the profits of
circuit boards manufacturers. In short, the future challenge will
be more severe. Although we have a diversified market and
industry sector, a broad high-quality customer base, and strong
defensiveness, the general unfavorable environment has a
negative impact on the Company. The Company is closely
monitoring external developments and its own internal customer
orders to make appropriate adjustments accordingly.

Events after reporting period
There were no other significant events from the end of the
reporting period up to the date of this annual report.
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Our Board is responsible and has general powers for the
management and conduct of the business. The following table
sets forth information regarding members of the Board as at the
date of this report:

EEEARXBNEERKE YR ER T EiEE
N TREIINABRERERESTERNENER ¢

Name Appointment Date Resignation Date Age
®E ZEBRH B E B Fie
Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. Chan Wing Yin 8 July 2014 - 71
PRECE St 4 —ZE-MFE+ANH

Mrs. Chan Yung 8 July 2014 - 71
BREZ L —E-NE+LANA

Mr. Chan Yan Wing 8 July 2014 - 41
PR B K e A4 —ET-HFELANA

Non-executive Director

FHTES

Mr. Chan Yan Kwong 1 November 2017 - 42
BREN A —Z—+F+—H—H

Independent Non-executive Directors

BYFHTES

Mr. Chung Yuk Ming 18 November 2014 - 73
EERBALAE —E-NFE+—HATNR

Mr. Yau Wing Yiu 18 November 2014 - 53
R R R S A —ZE-—mE+—A+N\R

Mr. Lau Shun Chuen 30 September 2016 - 70
2B %4 —E-RFAA=TH

Mr. Chan Wing Yin (BFR$ &), aged 71, is our chairman,
executive Director and chief executive officer. He is the founder
of the Group and has participated in the management of the
Group since January 1992. Mr. Chan is the director of all our
subsidiaries. Mr. Chan is responsible for the corporate strategic
planning and overall business development of the Group. Mr.
Chan is the spouse of Mrs. Chan Yung, the father of Mr. Chan
Yan Kwong (the non-executive Director) and Mr. Chan Yan
Wing (the executive Director).

Before incorporation of Yan Tat (HK) Industrial Limited (“YT
Industrial”) in 1992, Mr. Chan was a sole proprietorship
conducting business under the name of Yan Tat (HK) Industrial
Co. from September 1989, which was primarily engaged in the
manufacturing of PCBs and which enabled Mr. Chan to acquire
relevant industry knowledge and accumulate relevant experience.
Mr. Chan has more than 31 years of experience in the PCB
production and sales.
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Mr. Chan currently serves as vice chairman of the Fujian
Chamber of Commerce in Shenzhen CEYITIEEEF ), the vice
chairman of The Employers’ Federation of Shenzhen (&I
EBEHAE) since September 2004 and currently as the
honorary president of the highest ranking members (&= &5 &
B E 2 ER) since 2010. Mr. Chan is also currently the vice
chairman of China Printed Circuit Association (|2 BEN&LE B&1T
#12) (CPCA) since March 2010. Mr. Chan was recognised as
"Pioneer Worker” by CPCA in 2012.

Mr. Chan attended his secondary school education in Fujian
province, the PRC from 1962 to 1964.

Mrs. Chan Yung (BRE), aged 71, is our executive Director and
vice president. She has participated in the management of the
Group since September 1996. Mrs. Chan is one of the directors
of four of our subsidiaries. Mrs. Chan is responsible for
overseeing the administration, purchasing and logistics of the
Group, corporate strategic planning and overall business
development of the Group. Mrs. Chan is the spouse of Mr. Chan
Wing Yin, and the mother of Mr. Chan Yan Kwong and Mr.
Chan Yan Wing.

Mrs. Chan completed her secondary school education in Fujian
province, the PRC in June 1968.

Mr. Chan Yan Wing (BR2 k), aged 41, is our executive
Director and vice president. Mr. Chan is the son of Mr. Chan
Wing Yin and Mrs. Chan Yung, and the brother of Mr. Chan
Yan Kwong. Mr. Chan is one of the directors of five of our
subsidiaries.

Mr. Chan has approximately 17 years of experience in the PCB
industry. Mr. Chan joined our Group in July 2003 and is primarily
responsible for overseeing the sales and marketing of the Group.

Mr. Chan graduated from University of London in the United
Kingdom with a bachelor’s degree of science in Management in
August 2002. Since 2016 till now, Mr. Chan was elected as a
member and standing committee member of the Shenzhen
Municipal Pingshan District Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference and he has been a member and the
executive director of the Youth Committee of Hong Kong
Printed Circuit Association since January 2013, October 2017
respectively. He has been the vice chairman of the Fujian
Chamber of Commerce in Shenzhen (RIITEERTE) since
January 2012. Since 2019, he has served as the executive
director of the Hong Kong Federation of Fujian Associations and
the executive deputy director of the youth committee of the
association. Since 2019, he has served as the deputy secretary of
the Friends of Wuyi. Since 2020, he has served as the vice
chairman of Hong Kong Shenzhen Youth Association. Since
2020, he has served as vice chairman of the Hong Kong Youth
Development Alliance. Since March 2021, he has served as the
vice chairman of Hong Kong Ping Shan Youth Association.
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Mr. Chan Yan Kwong (FR 2 3¢), aged 42, is our non-executive
Director. Mr. Chan is the son of Mr. Chan Wing Yin and Mrs.
Chan Yung, and the brother of Mr. Chan Yan Wing. Mr. Chan is
one of the directors of seven of our subsidiaries.

Mr. Chan joined our Group in April 2011 and appointed as
executive Director for the period from July 2014 to October
2017. He was primarily responsible for overseeing factory
expansion, information technology, human resources and
building management of the Group. Since November 2017, he
has been re-designated as a non-executive Director. Prior to
joining our Group, Mr. Chan worked at Benoy Limited (a private
architectural firm) from June 2006 to March 2011 with his last
position as a senior graphic designer where he was responsible
for coordinating project construction and installation and
architectural design. After his re-designation as non-executive
Director, he continues to advise the Board on operational
strategies of the Group and the furtherance of its business
portfolio. He also continues to develop in the area of project
construction and architectural design.

Mr. Chan obtained a higher diploma in graphic design in Hong
Kong Technical Colleges (currently known as Hong Kong
Institute of Vocational Education) in Hong Kong in September
1999. Mr. Chan then graduated from London College of Printing
(currently known as London College of Communication) in the
United Kingdom in May 2002 and received a bachelor’s degree
of arts in Graphic and Media Design and was awarded a
professional development award in Print Production (Print
Packaging and Buying) in August 2002. He also obtained a
master’s degree in Interactive Digital Media at The University of
Sussex in the United Kingdom in November 2004. Mr. Chan has
been a member of the Youth Committee of Hong Kong Printed
Circuit Association since January 2013.
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Mr. Chung Yuk Ming (# £ 88), aged 73, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 18 November 2014. Mr.
Chung has over 34 years of experience in manufacturing of
motor cars, toys, electronics and communications. Mr. Chung
was the executive director of L.K. Technology Holdings Limited
(stock code: 558) and Kader Holdings Company Limited (stock
code: 180). Both companies are listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chung obtained a master’s degree in Business
Administration in the University of East Asia (currently known as
University of Macau) in the Macau Special Administrative Region
in May 1989. He is currently a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors.

Mr. Lau Shun Chuen (£JJ[E£), aged 70, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 30 September 2016. He
is a retired banker. Mr. Lau held senior positions at the Bank of
East Asia, HSBC and Hang Seng Bank, he has over 37 years of
experience in the banking industry in Hong Kong, China and
Canada. Mr. Lau obtained a Bachelor of Science degree from the
University of Hong Kong in July 1973. He was a Fellow of the
Chartered Institute of Bankers and a Fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Bankers.

Mr. Yau Wing Yiu (E8%8#8), aged 53, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 18 November 2014. Mr.
Yau has over 26 years of experience in finance and accounting.
Mr. Yau has been working as financial controller and company
secretary of companies listed in Hong Kong. Mr. Yau had also
been working in international accounting firms.

Mr. Yau graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
with a bachelor’s degree of arts in Accountancy. Mr. Yau is an
associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants.
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Our executive Directors and senior management are responsible
for the day-to-day management of our business. The following
table sets out certain information concerning our senior
management as at the date of this report:

HOTESLSRELERERARRKEE - TR#ED

RABRERMNERSAEEE A TER -

Name Age Positions within the Company

®E Fie REDRZBA

Mr. Lai Hau Yin 53  Chief financial officer and company secretary
REBRE BEMBRERARWE

Mr. Leung Siu Yat 56  Vice president

RABRITHE BB

Mr. Ho David Pei Yen 65  Vice president

BIEEBEE EIREESY

Mr. Lai Hau Yin (32 8), aged 53, was appointed as our chief
financial officer in March 2014 and our company secretary in
August 2014, and is mainly responsible for overseeing the
financial planning, accounting and company secretarial affairs of
our Group. Mr. Lai has more than 28 years of experience in the
areas of audit and accounting gained from various listed
companies and accounting firm in Hong Kong.

Mr. Lai is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since February 2009, a certified
practise accountant of the Australian Society of Certified
Practising Accountants since September 1996.

Mr. Lai obtained a bachelor’s degree in Business from Deakin
University of Australia in Australia in December 1992, a master’s
degree in Business Administration from West Coast Institute of
Management & Technology in Australia in May 2000 (long
distance learning course).

Mr. Leung Siu Yat (4>#), aged 56, first joined our Group as
a production manager and the vice president in November 2004,
and is mainly responsible for supervising and management of the
PCB factory production of our Group. Mr. Leung has over 30
years of experience in the PCB industry. Prior to joining our
Group, Mr. Leung worked for Ellington (Guangdong) Electronics
Technology Company Limited (a PCB manufacturer) as a deputy
general manager of a manufacturing factory from August 2000
to September 2004. From January 1997 to July 2000, he worked
for Kalex Printed Circuit Board Ltd. (a PCB manufacturer) with his
last position as an assistant production manager. From March
1986 to January 1997, Mr. Leung worked for Kalex Circuit Board
(Hong Kong) Ltd., a PCB manufacturer, as a production
superintendent. Mr. Leung was mainly responsible for overseeing
the factory operation and supervising the production staff in
these past positions. Mr. Leung completed his secondary school
education in Guangdong province, the PRC in July 1981.
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Mr. Ho David Pei Yen (B %), aged 65, was appointed as our
vice president in January 2004 and is mainly responsible for
market development and product sales of our Group. Mr. Ho has
over 24 years of experience in the PCB industry. Prior to joining
our Group, Mr. Ho worked for Enigma Interconnect Corp.
(formerly known as Circuit Graphics Ltd, a PCB manufacturer) in
Canada with his last position as president from 1993 to 2002,
where he was mainly responsible for implementing new
technology in PCB production and business development.

Mr. Ho obtained a diploma of technology in mechanical
technology from British Columbia Institute of Technology,
Canada in June 1980. Mr. Ho was accredited as an associate
member of the Society of Engineering Technologists of British
Columbia in Canada in June 1980.

Mr. Lai Hau Yin (22Z &) has been the chief financial officer
and the company secretary of our Company since March 2014
and August 2014, respectively. His biographical details are set
out in the above section headed “Directors and Senior
Management Profile — Senior Management”.
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Adapting and adhering to recognised standards of corporate
governance principles and practices has always been one of the
top priorities of the Company. The Board believes that good
corporate governance is one of the areas that lead to the success
of the Company and in balancing the interests of shareholders,
customers and employees, and the Board is devoted to ongoing
enhancements of the efficiency and effectiveness of such
principles and practices.

From 1 January 2020 up to the date of this annual report, the
Company had complied with the code provisions (“Code
Provisions”) set out in the Corporate Governance Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), except
code provision A.2.1 and A.6.7 as more particularly described
below.

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, the
responsibilities between the chairman and the chief executive
officer should be segregated and should not be performed by
the same individual. However, we do not have a separate
chairman and chief executive officer and Mr. Chan Wing Yin
currently performs these two roles. The Board believes that
vesting the roles of both chairman and chief executive officer in
the same person has the benefit of ensuring consistent
leadership within the Group and enables more effective and
efficient overall strategic planning for the Group. The Board
considers that the balance of power and authority for the
present arrangement will not be impaired and this structure will
enable the Company to make and implement decisions promptly
and effectively. The Board will continue to review and consider
splitting the roles of chairman of the Board and chief executive
officer of the Company at a time when it is appropriate and
suitable by taking into account the circumstances of the Group
as a whole.

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.7 of the Corporate Governance
Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, non-executive
directors should attend general meeting. However, Mr. Chan
Yan Kwong, being the non-executive Director, was unable to
attend the general meeting on 22 May 2020 due to the need to
attend other meetings. However, Mr. Chan often provides
valuable advice to the Company with his skills, experience and
expertise and he will strive to attend future general meeting(s) of
the Company so as to keep a balanced understanding of the
views of shareholders of the Company.
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The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings of the Model Code for
Securities Transaction by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having
made specific enquiries to all the Directors, the Company was
not aware of any non-compliance with the required standard of
dealings set out in the Model Code and its code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by Directors during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

Composition

The Board currently comprises seven Directors, three of which
are executive Directors, one is non-executive Director, and three
are independent non-executive Directors. The composition of the
Board is as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Wing Yin (Chairman)
Mrs. Chan Yung

Mr. Chan Yan Wing

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Chan Yan Kwong

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chung Yuk Ming

Mr. Yau Wing Yiu

Mr. Lau Shun Chuen

Mr. Chan Wing Yin is the spouse of Mrs. Chan Yung. They are
the parents of Mr. Chan Yan Kwong (the non-executive Director)
and Mr. Chan Yan Wing (the executive Director).

The biographical details of each Director are set out in the
section “Directors and Senior Management Profile” on pages 20
to 25.
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Details of the attendance of individual Directors at Board
meetings, committee meetings and shareholder meetings held
during the year ended 31 December 2020 are as follows:

FAREEREBEE T _EF+_A=+—HULEFER
TRZEEELH  ZESLREBREASZHFE R
BEEFT

Directors' Attendance Attended/Held

ESHRNY/BO0Y
Annual  Extraordinary
Board Audit  Remuneration Nomination General General
Meetings Committee Committee Committee Meeting Meeting
gzees EHE §MzEe R#ZEE  RREEAE  RREBIAE
Executive Directors HTEE
Mr. Chan Wing Yin (Chairman) BRETE(ZE) m NAER NAZER NAZEF n n
Mrs. Chan Yung ey m NAZNER NAZNER NAZNER 01 01
Mr. Chan Yan Wing REx%AE i NATEE " 11 1 1
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. Chan Yan Kwong REtfE m NAER i 1L 01 11
Independent Non-executive Directors BUKHTES
Mr. Chung Yuk Ming TP m 3B " " " "n
Mr. Yau Wing Yiu BRELE 67 33 /1 1 i i
Mr. Lau Shun Chuen |y m ElE! /1 1 i i

The Board is scheduled to meet regularly at least four times a
year at approximately quarterly intervals, to discuss the overall
strategy as well as the operational and financial performance of
the Company. Other Board meetings will be held when
necessary. Such Board meetings involve the active participation,
either in person or through other electronic means of
communication, of a majority of Directors. For the year ended 31
December 2020, seven Board meetings were held.

Appropriate notices are given to all Directors in advance for
attending regular and other Board meetings. Meeting agendas
and other relevant information are provided to the Directors in
advance of Board meetings. All Directors are consulted to include
additional matters in the agenda for Board meetings.

Directors have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary with a view to ensuring that Board procedures, and all
applicable rules and regulations, are followed.

Both draft and final versions of the minutes are sent to all
Directors for their comment and records. Minutes of Board
meetings are kept by the company secretary and such minutes
are open for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable
prior notice by any Director.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, two general meeting
was held.
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The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing and managing
the Company’s affairs, including the responsibilities for the
adoption of long-term strategies and appointing and supervising
senior management to ensure that the operation of the Group is
conducted in accordance with the objective of the Group. The
Board is also responsible for determining the Company’s
corporate governance policies which include: (i) to develop and
review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance; (ii) to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management; (iii) to review and monitor the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; (iv) to review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and (v) to review the Company’s disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

While at all times the Board retains full responsibility for guiding
and monitoring the Company in discharging its duties, certain
responsibilities are delegated to various Board committees which
have been established by the Board to deal with different aspects
of the Company's affairs. Unless otherwise specified in their
respective written terms of reference as approved by the Board,
these Board committees are governed by the Company'’s articles
of association as well as the Board's policies and practices (in so
far as the same are not in conflict with the provisions contained
in the articles of association). With the new composition of
members of the nomination committee, the remuneration
committee and the audit committee, the independent non-
executive Directors will be able to effectively devote their time to
perform the duties required by the respective Board committees.

The Board has also delegated the responsibility of implementing
its strategies and the day-to-day operation to the management
of the Company under the leadership of the executive Directors.
Clear guidance has been made as to the matters that should be
reserved to the Board for its decision which include matters on,
inter alia, capital, finance and financial reporting, risk
management and internal controls, communication with
shareholders, Board membership, delegation of authority and
corporate governance.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the preparation of
the financial statements which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group. The financial statements set out on
pages 62 to 148 were prepared on the basis set out in note 2.1
to the consolidated financial statements. Financial results of the
Group are announced in a timely manner in accordance with
statutory and/or regulatory requirements. The declaration of
reporting responsibility issued by the external auditors of the
Company on the Company’s financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 56 to 61.

There is no non-compliance with rules 3.10(1), (2) and 3.10A of
the Listing Rules.
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Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all
independent non-executive Directors meet the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are
independent in accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, all Directors have
been given relevant guideline materials and attended a training
regarding the duties and responsibilities of being a Director, the
relevant laws and regulations applicable to the Directors, duty of
disclosure of interest and business of the Group. Such induction
materials and briefings will also be provided to newly appointed
Directors shortly upon their appointment as Directors.
Continuing briefings and professional development to Directors
will be arranged whenever necessary.

All Directors have provided record of training attendance, and
the Company will continue to arrange and/or fund the training
in accordance with the Code Provisions.

During the year, all Directors pursued continuous professional
development, and relevant details are set out below:

Name of Directors

EBUIIFRTEECRELTRANEIBFIELFE
BIUMR  NAARRREWBUIFNTEFTHTE L
mARRSE 33 RMBEL S| - BREE S| M RE
B ANTL -

REBE-Z-_TF+_-_A=1+—HIFE 2BE=x
HEERHMBREEIIER X2 ME - AR REE
BREZIZBRENEMT BARESEZHABEGRAEG
MAEEHERBEEARES FIEZRZTAE
FE o TEREHANEEZSRBERRE®R 05
FE ARRBAESLTHEENRMAEERRE -

E2REEFHERMBIIHFELS  MARBBESER
BTG B RS B

ER - FAEEMERBETLEE  AREERS
mF -

Types of training

EEHAE EIEER
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Chan Wing Yin PRECE 5o 4 A, B
Mrs. Chan Yung PRE 22+ A, B
Mr. Chan Yan Wing BRB KA A, B
Non-executive Director FPITES

Mr. Chan Yan Kwong PR A4 A, B
Independent Non-executive Directors BIUFHITES

Mr. Chung Yuk Ming EERAKE A, B
Mr. Yau Wing Yiu ERER IR e 4 A, B
Mr. Lau Shun Chuen 2 E sz 5 A A B
Remarks: s

A — Attending conferences/forums/seminars
B — Reading journals/updates/articles/materials
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Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, the
responsibilities between the chairman and the chief executive
officer should be segregated and should not be performed by
the same individual. However, we do not have a separate
chairman and chief executive officer and Mr. Chan Wing Yin
currently performs these two roles. The Board believes that
vesting the roles of both chairman and chief executive officer in
the same person has the benefit of ensuring consistent
leadership within our Group and enables more effective and
efficient overall strategic planning for our Group. The Board
considers this structure will enable our Company to make and
implement decisions promptly and effectively. The Board believes
that the balance of power and authority is adequately ensured
by the operation of the Board, which comprises experienced and
high calibre individuals with a sufficient number thereof being
independent non-executive Directors.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company, non-executive Director and each of
the independent non-executive Directors has signed a letter of
appointment with the Company. Such term is for an initial term
of three years commencing from the Listing Date (except for Mr.
Lau Shun Chuen and Mr. Chan Yan Kwong, whose term is for
three years commencing from his date of appointment) and shall
continue subject to termination by either party in accordance
with the terms thereof and the retirement and re-election
provisions in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company.

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company, at
each annual general meeting ("AGM") one third of the Directors
for the time being shall retire from office by rotation. However,
if the number of Directors is not a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one third shall be the name
of retiring Directors. The Directors who shall retire in each year
will be those who have been longest in the office since their last
re-election or appointment but as between persons who become
or were last re-elected Directors on the same day those to retire
will (unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be
determined by the Company. Such retiring Directors may, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the AGM. All Directors
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
until the first general meeting of shareholders after their
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting and
all Directors appointed by the Board as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next following
AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election.
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The Company established a nomination committee pursuant to a
resolution of the Directors on 18 November 2014 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the Code Provisions. Its
terms of reference are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the nomination committee are to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board on regular
basis; identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members; assess the independence of independent non-
executive Directors; and make recommendations to the Board on
relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors. The nomination committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lau Shun
Chuen (Chairman), Mr. Chung Yuk Ming and Mr. Yau Wing Yiu,
one executive Director, namely Mr. Chan Yan Wing, and one
non-executive Director, namely Mr. Chan Yan Kwong.

For year under review, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting, in which it reviewed the structure of the Board and
recommended to the Board for reappointment of all directors at
the forthcoming annual general meeting. The Nomination
Committee also determined the criteria of the board diversity
policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”).

When identifying suitable candidates for directorship, the
nomination committee will carry out the selection process by
making reference to the skills, experience, education
background, professional knowledge, personal integrity and time
commitments of the proposed candidates, and also the
Company’s needs and other relevant statutory requirements and
regulations required for the positions. All candidates must be
able to meet the standards as set forth in Rules 3.08 and 3.09 of
the Listing Rules. A candidate who is to be appointed as an
independent non-executive Director should also meet the
independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
Qualified candidates will then be recommended to the Board for
approval.
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To enhance the quality of the performance of the Board and to
achieve diversity on the Board, the Board adopted on 18
November 2014 the Board Diversity Policy, pursuant to which (i)
differences in the skills, regional and industry experience,
background, race, gender and other qualities of Directors will be
taken into account in determining the optimum composition of
the Board; and (ii) all Board appointments will be based on merit
while taking into account diversity (including gender diversity).
For the purpose of implementation of the Board Diversity Policy,
the following measurable objectives were adopted:

(A) at least one-third of the members of the Board shall be
independent non-executive directors;

(B) at least one of the members of the Board shall have
obtained accounting or other professional qualifications;

(C) atleast 70% of the members of the Board shall have more
than seven years of experience in the industry he/she is
specialised in; and

(D) at least two of the members of the Board shall have China-
related work experience.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board has fulfilled
the measurable objectives of the Board Diversity Policy.

The Company established a remuneration committee pursuant
to a resolution of the Directors passed on 18 November 2014
with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.25
and Rule 3.26 of the Listing Rules. The written terms of reference
of the remuneration committee was adopted in compliance with
the Code Provisions. Its terms of reference are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the remuneration committee are to make
recommendation to the Board on the overall remuneration policy
and structure relating to all Directors and senior management of
the Group and ensure none of the Directors determine their own
remuneration. The emoluments of executive Directors are
determined based on the skills, knowledge, individual
performance as well as contributions, the scope of responsibility
and accountability of such Directors, taking into consideration of
the Company’s performance and prevailing market conditions.
The remuneration policy of independent non-executive Directors
is to ensure that the independent non-executive Directors are
adequately compensated for their efforts and time dedicated to
the Company'’s affairs including their participation in respective
Board committees. The emoluments of independent non-
executive Directors are determined with reference to their skills,
experience, knowledge, duties and market trends. As at the date
of this annual report, the remuneration committee consists of
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chung
Yuk Ming (Chairman), Mr. Lau Shun Chuen and Mr. Yau Wing
Yiu, one executive Director, namely Mr. Chan Yan Wing and one
non-executive Director, namely Mr. Chan Yan Kwong.
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Details of remuneration of Directors and chief executive are set
out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the Corporate Governance
Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, the annual
remuneration of the members of the senior management by
band for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out below:

EERFBETHABHMOFBRHNG A M BHREM
8

BIE ET R BR800 Fr s 2 2 E AT R ST AE
XEBASKE BE_Z-_TF+_-_A=+—HILFE
SREEBKERFNGESZ D 2 FEHFMEOT

Number of
Remuneration band Individual
& E AE
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 T2 1,000,00078 7T 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 % 7L & 1,500,000 78 7T 2

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee
held three meetings in which it assessed the performance,
reviewed and determined the remuneration package of the
directors and senior management.

The Company established an audit committee pursuant to a
resolution of the Director passed on 18 November 2014 with
written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 and
Rule 3.22 of the Listing Rules. The written terms of reference of
the audit committee was adopted in compliance with the Code
Provisions. Its terms of reference are available on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the audit committee, among other things,
are to make recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of external auditor, review the
financial statements and material advice in respect of financial
reporting and oversees risk management and internal control
procedures of the Company. As at the date of this annual report,
the audit committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Yau Wing Yiu (Chairman), Mr. Lau Shun
Chuen and Mr. Chung Yuk Ming.

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Audit Committee members met twice with the external auditors
and the Group’s senior management to discuss and review,
among other things, the following matters:

(@)  the annual results for the year ended 31 December 2020
and the interim results for the six-month ended 30 June
2020 to ensure the full, complete and accurate disclosure
in the aforesaid financial statements pursuant to the
accounting standards and other legal requirements for
presenting the same to the Board for approval;
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(b)  the term and remuneration for the appointment of Ernst &
Young as external auditors to perform the audit of final
results for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the
review on the interim results for the six months ended 30
June 2020;

(c)  the independence of the external auditors especially for
those non-audit services;

(d)  the continuing connected transactions of the Group;

(e)  the overall effectiveness of risk management and internal
controls;

(f)  the overall effectiveness of its internal audit function; and

(9) the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff and the accounting and financial reporting matters
and their training programmes and budget.

The Audit Committee is satisfied with, inter alia, the audit fees,
effectiveness of the audit process, independence and objectivity
of the external auditors and has recommended to the Board the
re-appointment of Ernst & Young as the Company’s external
auditors for the ensuing year at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

During the period from the Listing Date to the date of this
annual report, the Board has not taken a different view from the
audit committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of external auditors.

During the year, the Company engaged Ernst & Young as the
external auditors. Apart from providing audit services, Ernst &
Young also provided non-audit services including: i) taxation
service; ii) review of interim financial information; iii) certain
procedures on the annual result announcement; and iv) certain
procedures on very substantial transactions. The fees in respect
of audit and non-audit services provided by Ernst & Young for
the year ended 31 December 2020 approximately amounted to
HK$1,480,000 and HK$1,087,500, respectively.

The reporting responsibilities of Ernst & Young are set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 56 to 61.

Mr. Lai Hau Yin being our company secretary is primarily
responsible for the company secretarial work of our Group. Mr.
Lai is also our Company’s chief financial officer. The Company
confirms that Mr. Lai has for the year 2020 attended no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training.
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During the year, the Group has complied with Principle C.2 of
the Corporate Governance Code by establishing appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems.
Management is responsible for the design, implementation and
monitoring of such systems, while the Board oversees
management in performing its duties on an ongoing basis. Main
features of the risk management and internal control systems are
described in the sections below:

Risk Management System
The Group adopts a risk management system which manages
the risk associated with its business and operations. The system
comprises the following phases:

o Identification: Identify ownership of risks, business
objectives and risks that could affect the achievement of
objectives.

o Evaluation: Analyze the likelihood and impact of risks and
evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

o Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication to the Board and on-going monitor the
residual risks.

The management assesses the potential risks faced by the Group
from time to time, which is also evaluated annually by a
professional institute engaged by the Group. This year's
evaluation covered the period from 1 January 2020 to 31
December 2020.

Based on the risk assessments conducted in 2020, no significant
risk was identified.

Internal Control System

The Company has in place an internal control system which is
compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (“COSO") 2013 framework. The
framework enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
The components of the framework are shown as follow:

o Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for carrying out internal
control across the Group.

o Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for
identifying and analyzing risks to achieve the Group's
objectives, forming a basis for determining how risks
should be managed.

o Control Activities: Action established by policies and
procedures to help ensure that management directives to
mitigate risks to the achievement of objectives are carried
out.
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o Information and Communication: Internal and external
communication to provide the Group with the information
needed to carry out day-to-day controls.

o Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain
whether each components of internal control is present
and functioning.

In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside
information, and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy,
completeness and timeliness of its public disclosures, the Group
also adopts and implements an inside information policy and
procedures. Certain reasonable measures have been taken from
time to time to ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent a
breach of a disclosure requirement in relation to the Group,
which include:

o The access of information is restricted to a limited number
of employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who
are in possession of inside information are fully conversant
with their obligations to preserve confidentiality.

o Confidentiality agreements are in place when the Group
enters into significant negotiations.

o The Executive Directors are designated persons who speak
on behalf of the Company when communicating with
external parties such as the media, analysts or investors.

The management assess the internal control system of the Group
from time to time, which is also evaluated annually by a
professional institution engaged by the Group. The professional
institution has completed the evaluation for the period from 1
January 2020 to 31 December 2020. Based on the internal
control reviews conducted in 2020, no significant control
deficiency was identified.

Internal Auditors

The Group has an Internal Audit (“IA") function, which is
consisted of professional staff with relevant expertise. The 1A
function is independent of the Group’s daily operation and
carries out appraisal of the risk management and internal control
systems by conducting interviews, walkthroughs and tests of
operating effectiveness.

An IA plan has been approved by the Board. According to the
established plan, review of the risk management and internal
control systems is conducted annually and the results are
reported to the Board via Audit Committee afterwards.
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Effectiveness of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and ensuring review of the
effectiveness of these systems has been conducted annually.
Several areas have been considered during the Board’s review,
which include but not limited to (i) the changes in the nature
and extent of significant risks since the last annual review, and
the Group’s ability to respond to changes in its business and the
external environment (ii) the scope and quality of management’s
ongoing monitoring of risks and of the internal control systems.

The Board, through its review and the review made by IA
function and Audit Committee, concluded that the risk
management and internal control systems were effective and
adequate. Such systems, however, are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss. It is also
considered that the resources, staff qualifications and experience
of relevant staff were adequate and the training programs and
budget provided were sufficient.

The following procedures for shareholders of the Company to
convene an extraordinary general meeting ("EGM") of the
Company are prepared in accordance with the articles of
association as follows:

(1) One or more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit
of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company having the right of voting at
general meetings, shall have the right, by written notice, to
require an EGM to be called by the Directors of the
Company for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition.

(2)  Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or
the company secretary of the Company at the following:

Principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong

Address: Room 809-810, Kwong Sang Hong Centre,
151-153 Hoi Bun Road,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Email: ir@yantat.com

Attention: Mr. Lai Hau Yin

Registered office of the Company

Address: Clifton House 75 Fort Street
P.O. Box 1350 Grand Cayman KY-1108
Cayman Islands

Attention: Mr. Lai Hau Yin

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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(3)  The EGM shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition.

(4) If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

For matters in relation to the Board, the shareholders can contact
the Company at the following:

By post to the Company’s headquarter in Hong Kong
By email to ir@yantat.com

To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the Company,
a shareholder should lodge a written notice of his or her
proposal (“Proposal”) with his or her detailed contact
information at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrars in Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the
request is proper and in order, the Board will be asked to include
the Proposal in the agenda for the general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the shareholders for
consideration of the Proposal raised by the shareholder
concerned at the general meeting varies according to the nature
of the Proposal as follows:

(1) At least 14 days’ notice in writing if the Proposal requires
approval by way of ordinary resolution of the Company.

(2) At least 21 days' notice in writing if the Proposal requires
approval by way of a special resolution of the Company in
an EGM of the Company or an ordinary resolution of the
Company in an annual general meeting of the Company.
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The Board recognises the importance of good communications
with all shareholders. The Company believes that maintaining a
high level of transparency is a key to enhance investor relations.
The Company is committed to a policy of open and timely
disclosure of corporate information to its shareholders and
investing public.

The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its corporate
publications including annual reports and public announcements.
Extensive information about the Company’s activities for the year
ended 31 December 2020 has been provided in this annual
report. While the AGM provides a valuable forum for direct
communication between the Board and its shareholders, the
Company also maintains its website (www.yantat.com) to
provide an alternative communication channel for the public and
its shareholders. All corporate communication and Company’s
latest updates are available on the Company’s website for
public’s information.

From the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report,
there has been no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.

Hong Kong, 24 March 2021
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The Directors have the pleasure of presenting their annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the
"Consolidated Financial Statements”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
those of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Further
discussion and analysis of these activities as required by Schedule
5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong
Kong) (“Companies Ordinance”) can be found in the sections
headed “Chairman’s Statement” set out on pages 4 and 5 and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages 8 to
19 of this annual report. This discussion forms part of this report
of the Directors.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
and the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2020
are set out in the Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 62
to 148.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK6.0
cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 7. This summary
does not form part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 26 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

At 31 December 2020, the investment properties of the Group
were revalued by an independent firm of professional surveyor
and property valuer on an open market value basis at
HK$28,933,000 (2019: HK$26,641,000).

Details of these and other movements during the year in the
investment properties of the Group are set out below and in
note 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 66 and 67 of this
annual report and note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

As at 31 December 2020, the Company'’s distributable reserves,
calculated under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to approximately HK$58.8 million (2019: HK$64.9
million).

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$152,000 (2019: HK$252,000).

Sales attributable to the Group's largest customer and the five
largest customers accounted for approximately 31.3% and
60.4% (2019: 34.9% and 63.5%) respectively of the Group’s
total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020. The
purchases made by the Group from its largest supplier and the
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 41.9% and
73.3% (2019: 35.3% and 67.5%) of the Group’s total purchases
for the year ended 31 December 2020, respectively.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, neither the Directors,
their close associates, nor any shareholders who owned more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital, had any
beneficial interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers during the year.

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into, or existed, during the year.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Director’s and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
against its Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities. The permitted indemnity provision is in force
for the benefit of the Directors as required by section 470 of the
Companies Ordinance when the Report of the Board of the
Directors prepared by the Directors is approved in accordance
with section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance.
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The details of the major subsidiaries of the Company are set out
in note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

During the year, the Group's total capital expenditure amounted
to approximately HK$10.6 million (2019: HK$9.1 million) which
was mainly used for acquisition of machineries and equipment.

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment during
the year are set out in note 13 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Particulars of borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2020
date are set out in note 24 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements. The details of the Group’s charges on assets are set
out on page 18.

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Wing Yin (Chairman)
Mrs. Chan Yung

Mr. Chan Yan Wing

Non-executive Director
Mr. Chan Yan Kwong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chung Yuk Ming

Mr. Yau Wing Yiu

Mr. Lau Shun Chuen

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years, subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meeting
and shall continue thereafter until terminated by not less than
three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the
other or otherwise in accordance with the terms of the service
contract.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed a
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three
years, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual
general meeting and until terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other or
otherwise in accordance with the terms of the letter of
appointment.
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No Director has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Company or any of its subsidiaries within 1 year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and all of them are considered
to be independent.

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, one
third of the existing Directors shall retire from office at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no Director of the
Company or an entity connected with such Director had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement or contract that is significant in relation to the
business of the Group to which the holding company of the
Company, or any of the Company’s subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party during the year.

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management
of the Group are disclosed in the section headed “Directors and
Senior Management Profile” on pages 20 to 25 of this annual
report.

Save as disclosed in this annual report and the prospectus of the
Company dated 26 November 2014 (the “Prospectus”), there
was no contract of significance or contract of significance for
provision of services, to which the Company or its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any
controlling shareholder or its subsidiaries had a material interest
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Each of the controlling shareholders has made an annual
declaration in respect of their compliance with the terms of non-
competition undertaking.

Details of the non-competition undertaking are set out in the
section headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” of
the Prospectus.

The non-competition undertakings in respect of the controlling
shareholders have become effective from the Listing Date.
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Each of the executive Directors and non-executive Director of the
Company has made an annual declaration in respect of their
compliance with the terms of non-competition undertaking.

The non-competition undertakings in respect of the executive
Directors and non-executive Director have become effective from
the Listing Date.

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed and
confirmed that the executive Directors and non-executive
Director of the Company have complied with the non-
competition undertaking and the non-competition undertaking
has been enforced by the Company in accordance with its terms.

There was no New Opportunity (as defined in the Prospectus
headed "Relationship with Controlling Shareholders — Non
Competition Undertakings”) referred by the controlling
shareholders to the Company as provided under the non-
competition undertaking.

No contract of significance had been entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, and the controlling
shareholders or any of their subsidiaries during the year ended
31 December 2020.

The Company has entered into the following continuing
connected transactions (as defined under the Listing Rules) for
the year ended 31 December 2020:

(1) On 31 October 2019, Yan Tat Technology Limited (“YT
Technology”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into a lease agreement (“Yantek Lease”)
with Yantek Electronics Company Limited (“Yantek”) a
connected person of the Company within the meanings of
the Listing Rules. Pursuant to the Yantek Lease, YT
Technology shall lease from Yantek the premises situated
at Flat E on 15th Floor and Flat Roof immediately above of
Tower 5 and Car Parking Space No. 11 on Car Park B1,
One Beacon Hill, No. 1 Beacon Hill Road, Kowloon, Hong
Kong with a gross total floor area of approximately 1,473
square feet at a monthly rental of HK$58,000 for a term of
2 years commencing from 1 November 2019 (total
consideration: HK$1,392,000). The lease term is from 1
November 2019 to 31 October 2021 as staff quarter for
Mr. Chan Wing Yin and Mrs. Chan Yung.
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(2)  On 13 October 2020, YT Technology renewed a tenancy
agreement (“Headquarters Lease”) with Yantek, a
connected person of the Company within the meanings of
the Listing Rules. Pursuant to the Headquarters Lease, YT
Technology shall lease from Yantek the office premises and
warehouse located at Room 09, 10 and 14 on 8th Floor,
Kwong Sang Hong Centre, Nos. 151-153 Hoi Bun Road,
Kwun Tong Kowloon, Hong Kong at a monthly rental of
HK$90,000 for a term of 2 years commencing on 25
November 2020 and ending on 24 November 2022 for the
Group's use (total consideration: HK$2,160,000).

Yantek is beneficially owned as to 34% by Mr. Chan Yan Wing,
33% by Mr. Chan Yan Kwong and 33% by Ms. Chan Yan Sam.
Mr. Chan Yan Wing and Mr. Chan Yan Kwong are the Directors
of the Company. Ms. Chan Yan Sam is the sister of Mr. Chan
Yan Kwong and Mr. Chan Yan Wing and the daughter of Mr.
Chan Wing Yin and Mrs. Chan Yung.

The continuing connected transactions mentioned above are
fully exempt from the reporting, annual review, announcement
requirements and the independent shareholders’ approval
requirements as set out in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent
non-executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing
connected transactions and in their opinion, the transactions are:
(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (2)
on normal commercial terms or better; and (3) in accordance
with the agreement governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, a summary of significant related party
transactions, which do not constitute connected transactions,
made during the year is disclosed in note 32 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements. The Company confirmed that it has
complied with the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The Company's existing Share Option Scheme was approved for
adoption pursuant to a written resolution of all of our
Shareholders passed on 18 November 2014 for the purpose to
provide our Company with a flexible means of giving incentive
to, rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or providing
benefits to eligible participants and for such other purposes as
the Board approve from time to time.

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Board
may, at their absolute discretion, grant or invite any person
belonging to any of the following classes to take up options to
subscribe for shares: (a) any employee, supplier, service provider,
customer, partner or joint-venture partner of the Group
(including any director, whether executive and whether
independent or not, of the Group) who is in full-time or part-
time employment with the Company or any subsidiaries, (b) any
person who have contributed or may contribute to the Group.
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The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not exceed 30% of the total number of shares in
issue from time to time.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company must not
exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue on 8
December 2014 unless the Company seeks the approval of the
shareholders in general meeting for refreshing the 10% limit
under the Share Option Scheme provided that options lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme or any
other share option schemes of the Company will not be counted
for the purpose of calculating 10% limit.

Details of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are set
out in paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” in the section
headed “Statutory and General Information” in Appendix V to
the Prospectus. The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme
are summarised as follows:

The Share Option Scheme was adopted for a period of 10 years
commencing from 18 November 2014 and remains in force until
17 November 2024. The Company may, by resolution in general
meeting or, such date as the Board determined, terminate the
Share Option Scheme at any time without prejudice to the
exercise of options granted prior to such termination.

The exercise price per share of the Company for each option
granted shall be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion but in any event shall be at least the higher of:

(1)  the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
guotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of offer for the grant of option (“Date of Grant”)
which must be a trading day;

(2) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the Date of
Grant; and

(3)  the nominal value of the shares on the Date of Grant.

Upon acceptance of the options, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00
to the Company as consideration for the grant. The acceptance
of an offer of the grant of the option must be made within the
date as specified in the offer letter issued by the Company. The
exercise period of any option granted under the Share Option
Scheme shall not be longer than 10 years commencing on the
date of grant and expiring on the last day of such 10-year period
subject to the provisions for early termination as contained in the
Share Option Scheme.
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The total number of new shares of the Company that may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share options schemes of the
Company shall not exceed 24,000,000 shares, which represents
10% of the shares in issue of the Company as at the date of this
report.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted to each
grantee under the Share Option Scheme (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall
not exceed 1% of the total number of Shares in issue. Any
further grant of options in excess of this 1% limit shall be subject
to issuance of a circular by the Company and approved by its
shareholders in accordance with the Listing Rules.

Any grant of share options to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, is required to be approved by the independent non-
executive directors. In addition, any grant of share options to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive director
of the Company, or any of their respective associates, in excess
of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time or
with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the
Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5
million, within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval in advance in a general meeting.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or
to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

From the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme to 31
December 2020, no options were granted under the Share
Option Scheme.

Additional particulars of the Company’s Share Option Scheme
are set out in note 27 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Apart from the aforesaid share option schemes, at no time
during the year ended 31 December 2020 was any of the
Company and its holding companies, subsidiaries and fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and
none of the Directors, or their spouses or children under the age
18, had any right to subscribe for the shares in, or debentures
of, the Company, or had exercise any such right.
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As at 31 December 2020, the Directors and chief executives of RZZEZZEF+_A=+—H sFEAQFETET
the Company had the following interests in the shares, HBABRARR - HEBEKERQE LB AR (F
underlying shares and debentures of the Company, its Group & RESRHE KN ([EB5RBEE]) EXVE) 2
members and/or associated corporations (within the meaning of %7 ~ REIRL (D M BB T HE Ty sN iRIE B H
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")), as REIEEHIEIS2 B FFERNELMAER - SR
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of & _E 148 B BTk 2 {2 ¥ <7 R BB A1 R A &) K B <2 BT Y

the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock  #2% :
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code in the Listing Rules:

The Company KAF
Number of
ordinary
Name of Capacity/ shares held Percentage of
Name of Director Group member nature of interest (Note 1)  shareholding
BEZBERHE
EEHE EEREATNERE B EEME (k) BERESL
Mr. Chan Wing Yin The Company Interest in a controlled 180,000,000 75%
corporation (Note 2) shares (L)
BRECE 4 AN/NS] R EE R (T 2) 180,000,000
A (L)
Mrs. Chan Yung The Company Interest of spouse (Note 3) 180,000,000 75%
shares (L)
PREZ+ ZAN/NS) BB (H5E3) 180,000,000
A% (L)
Notes: BRE
1. The letter “L” denotes the Directors’ long position in the shares of the 1. [Ll B ERAR A SRR AR B AR D HIF A
Company or the relevant associated corporation
2. The Company is held as to approximately 75% by Million Pearl Holdings 2. ZR2 =] 8 Million Pearl Holdings Ltd. ([ Million Pearl ) #7541 75%
Ltd. (“Million Pearl”). Million Pearl is held as to 70% by Mr. Chan Wing Yin 2% © Million Pearl IR E £ KRR B L L5 RIHE 70% K
and 30% by Mrs. Chan Yung. Mr. Chan Wing Yin is the spouse of Mrs. 30% 5 - MEB R ERRBLLMES - REZFHFRBEK
Chan Yung. Under the SFO, Mr. Chan Wing Yin is taken to be interested in Bl - BREE LR EWBIERRBZ TR G RENEREE 2R

the same number of shares in which Mrs. Chan Yung is interested. PR

3. Million Pearl is held as to 70% by Mr. Chan Wing Yin and 30% by Mrs. 3. Million Pearl 3 51l g &R &% B 55 4 o R B8 20 4575 70% K% 30% 12

Chan Yung. Mrs. Chan Yung is the spouse of Mr. Chan Wing Yin. Under @ MBATRARKRELENRSE - RIFEH RPERG - B
the SFO, Mrs. Chan Yung is taken to be interested in the same number of B IWBRERNREB A ERARANEREE ZROPHSE
shares to which Mr. Chan Wing Yin is interested. e e
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Associated Corporation 1R L E
Number of
Name of ordinary
associated Capacity/ shares held Percentage of
Name of Director corporation nature of interest (Note 1)  shareholding
FEEERHE
E=pE HEEEE B B EmtE GERD) BERES
Mr. Chan Wing Yin Million Pearl Beneficial owner/ 10 shares 100%
Interest of spouse
BRECBE 4 Ena AT BEE 10 %
Mrs. Chan Yung Million Pearl Beneficial owner/ 10 shares 100%
Interest of spouse
PREL L ERBEAAN I BER 10 %
Note: MEE
1. The disclosed interest represents the interests in the associated corporation, 1. P BB i 25 15 A MBS A Million Pearl MRS - HEMRAE o4

Million Pearl, which is held as to 70% by Mr. Chan Wing Yin and 30% by
Mrs. Chan Yung. Under the SFO, each of Mr. Chan Wing Yin and Mrs.
Chan Yung is taken to be interested in the same number of shares in which
other is interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company had any other
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or
which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code of the Listing Rules.
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As at 31 December 2020, so far as was known to the Directors,
the following persons/entities (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) had, or were deemed to have,
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

N—_E-_TF+-A= + EI
T/ EE(EERAARNRAREBITRABRIN RAEARQR
Hﬂ/ﬁﬂﬁ%@ﬂ%ﬁqﬂ ?zﬁ*ﬁﬂmﬁi%%mﬁ%%mﬁ&,ﬁﬁ
EIEFIEXVEE 2 REBE3IDEMIEARAR R HER
KB - RIRIEFE S M ATE K] 5 336 ka8 AR
ARAREAGENZCMOERIAB LT ¢

MEEMAM UTA

Number of
ordinary % of
shares held interest in
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest (Note 1)  the Company
BEEEEREE RAEQTF 2
BREE HE B, EmME (MF=E1) EREIL
Million Pearl (Note 2) Beneficial owner 180,000,000 75%
shares (L)
Million Pearl (B§7E2) EmfEAA 180,000,000 A% (L)
Mr. Chan Wing Yin Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 3) 180,000,000 75%
shares (L)
PREEE %4 R EE R (e 3) 180,000,000 f% (L)
Mrs. Chan Yung Interest of spouse (Note 4) 180,000,000 75%
shares (L)

BREZ T fofdiEss (M7t 4)
Notes:
1. The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the shares of the

Company or the relevant Group member.
2. Million Pearl is directly interested in approximately 75% of the Company.

3. The Company is held as to approximately 75% by Million Pearl. Million
Pearl is held as to 70% by Mr. Chan Wing Yin and 30% by Mrs. Chan
Yung. Mr. Chan Wing Yin is the spouse of Mrs. Chan Yung. Under the SFO,
Mr. Chan Wing Yin is taken to be interested in the same number of shares
in which Mrs. Chan Yung is interested.

4. Million Pearl is held as to 70% by Mr. Chan Wing Yin and 30% by Mrs.
Chan Yung. Mrs. Chan Yung is the spouse of Mr. Chan Wing Yin. Under
the SFO, Mrs. Chan Yung is taken to be interested in the same number of
shares in which Mr. Chan Wing Yin is interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the Directors
were not aware of any other persons/entities (other than the
Directors and chief executive of the Company) who had interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

180,000,000 % (L)
Wi

1. [LRRZALTRARR S A EEEREKE A RNROTFRE -

2. Million Pearl E## A AN R B4 75% #)#E s ©

3. XA &) Million Pearl #3578 #975% ## 2% © Million Pearl f R 45 B
EERBRBLZEDRIFBT0% K30%E% - REABRE AR
BLTHOERE - REFHFLBEEY - REBEERRBRR
Btk ARER 2 RSB ORDREGER -

4. Million Pearl B & &8 & 55 4 R BR BB &2+ B35 8 70% & 30% #
o RBAZLTARKBRENAE - RIBZSRBEEN - K
BATHWRARRRB S ERARE 2 BRI E OROTHES
P o

B EXPREEEIN R T-_TFE+ - A=+— E
BT ANTEEMEMAL BER (EERAR
ZITBABRIN RARBIRMD SABRER DT %ﬁ*ﬁ
RAE LA E GBI XV EDEE 2 M3 0 Bl R AR AR
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During the year, save as disclosed in the Prospectus, none of the
Directors or substantial shareholders of the Company or any of
their respective associates has engaged in any business that
competes or may compete with the business of the Group or has
any other conflict of interests with the Group.

During the year, neither did the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchase, sell or redeem any of the Company’s listed
securities.

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the shareholders by reason of their holding the
Company’s securities.

There is no provision for the pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association, or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules
throughout the financial year under review and up to the date of
this annual report.

Details of the Group’s corporate governance practices can be
found in the Corporate Governance Report contained on pages
26 to 40 of this annual report.

The Remuneration Committee was set up for reviewing the
Company’s emolument policy and structure of all remuneration
of the Directors and senior management of the Company,
having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market practices. No long-term
incentive schemes have been adopted by the Company.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five individuals
with highest emoluments are set out in note 8 and note 9 to the
financial statements.
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The Group produces PCB in China and sells them around the
world, and is faced with certain different types of risks and
uncertainties. The principal items are listed as below.

vi.

vii.

vii.

The COVID-19 outbreak, which has spread across China
and various regions in the world, has caused material
impact on people’s livelihood. Although vaccines have
begun to be used, their effectiveness has yet to be
confirmed. If the pandemic is not effectively alleviated, the
economy with the operation and production of enterprises
being exposed to adverse conditions.

The Group derives a significant portion of its revenue from
major customers, particularly automobile customers. The
decrease in demand from major customers may materially
and adversely affect the business.

Fluctuation in exchange rates may adversely affect the
business.

The Group may be subject to any labour shortages,
increased labour cost or other factors affecting labour
force, or full implementation of social security and public
housing policies, which may materially affect the Group's
business operation and financial condition.

The PRC government has tightened its environmental
regulation. Although the Group’s current operation falls in
line with the requirement, it may be affected and incur
additional expenses when the relevant regulatory threshold
is further raised in the future.

Donald Trump implements its America First policy, raises
tariffs on imported Chinese goods, and restricts Huawei
from participating in 5G projects. If the original policies are
still applied under the new U.S. president, which may slow
down economic growth across the globe, and in return
decelerate the development of the PCB market.

For the circuit boards industry, raw materials account for a
large proportion of costs. Since mid 2020, the prices of a
variety of major raw materials, such as copper clad
laminates, prepregs, copper foils have continuously risen
sharply. This caused a great impact on PCB operations.
Failure to make appropriate adjustments has reduced the
profit of the Company.

Currently, various PCB manufacturers are vigorously
expanding their production capacity. When the market
fails to meet the development expectation, the excessive
production capacity will result in irrational competition
among industrial peers, pushing down the unit price and
diminishing the company’s profitability.
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ix.  The Group’s sole production facility is based in Shenzhen.
If this facility experiences any issue that results in a lower
production output, and no third-party assistance is
identified, our sales will decline.

X.  The Group’s major production operation activities take
place in Mainland China. Any change to the policies in
Mainland China (including taxation, foreign exchange
control, and imports and exports) is likely to affect the
Group's overall performance.

Environmental protection is a collective responsibility not to be
ignored. The Group’s production factories in Shenzhen, China
possesses state-of-the-art PCB technologies and attaches a great
importance to environmental protection. The Group recognises
that the production process of PCBs would generate more
emissions than some other industries. In regard of this, we strive
to enhance the efficiency of environmental protection. The
Group sets up different management requirements for
environmental protection every year, aiming at reducing negative
impact on the environment from our operation. We have
obtained certification of IATF16949:2016 (quality assurance),
ISO14001 (environment management system), ISO9001 (quality
management system) and AS9100D (quality management
system) as well as UL-796 (safety and management) for PCB
quality standard and environment management system.

The Group strictly observed the laws and regulations governing
air pollution, noise pollution, hazardous chemicals, sewage and
waste discharge and other environmental matters issued by PRC
national, provincial and municipal governments and authorities.
Meanwhile, as a responsible corporation, we produce all of our
products in compliance with the requirement of Cleaner
Production Standard: Printed Circuit Board Manufacturing (&2
EEZE  HREERRIEE) issued by the Ministry of
Environmental Protection of China.

With resources in the Earth becoming increasingly scarce,
corporations should have long-term vision instead of focusing on
existing interests. The Group sees that there are economic
benefits to be capitalized in environmental protection and our
effort focuses chiefly in the following aspects, among others:
actively pushing forward the initiative of energy conservation
and consumption reduction by saving energy, water, material
and reducing resource consumption during the course of our
production, with a view to maximizing the cost effectiveness
with minimal resources; and full implementation of clean
production to achieve waste reduction at source. At the same
time, under the guidance of a paperless office, the Group
introduced the Enterprise Resources Planning System (“ERP”
System), through which it implemented electronic management
on the its production, sales, supply chain, and human resources
with a view to saving paper.
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The environmental, social and governance report in Compliance
with appendix 27 of the Listing Rules will be issued in due
course.

The Board paid attention to the Group's policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements. External
compliance and legal advisers are engaged to ensure transactions
and business performed by the Group are within the applicable
legal framework. Updates on applicable laws, rules and
regulations are brought to the attention of relevant employees
and operation units from time to time.

By order of the Board

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
CHAN Wing Yin

Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2 BED S

EY:

To the shareholders of Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yan
Tat Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 62 to 148, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BYZBA®RE ()

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the
basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated

MREBAFTRISRERMNERHE BB AR
AEUBBRRNEARAEENETH  GEFHAREY
FEVBRRBERETENLTLKERLNER TET
BIER  RATHELEREHEBNER - HMY
N F - FIEAEE TR RS et A LSS

BRPELETTARS [XBERE RS M B HRE
EENEE] BOMANEE  SEEEEHRE
EEMEMOEE - HEM - BB TIERERT
REHFENERA M B REEANFERER MR HE
g - HPIMTEAEFNGER  BREH TS
HEFTTRIZET - REMNGEEMERRERERSE
SIERGEM T EE -

financial statements.

Key audit matters

BEETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

RMANETNAEEERETER

Impairment of trade receivables

B 5B ERE

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had gross trade
receivables of approximately HK$198,600,000 before
impairment provision of approximately HK$3,338,000.
RZZBZTF+_A=+—H BE5EEFEWFIBLRE
#7198,600,000 7% 7T (FERAUE EE 4 3,338,000 8 7THI) ©

Significant management judgement and estimation were
required in assessing the expected credit losses (“ECLs")
for the trade receivables, with reference to the grouping of
various customer segments, ageing profile of the trade
receivables balances, existence of disputes, and past
repayment history of customers and forecast economic
conditions.

LB SRR TEREE BB ((TERESEE D REE
HEREEEBHENGS  C2EEEFPOHHE BEHE
WHIBEARRRIEN REFEMDART P BEERNESL
R BT o

The related disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 18
to the consolidated financial statements.

MEREREHN RS M EHmERME24 318

In evaluating management’s impairment assessment, our
procedures included: (i) obtaining confirmations and evidence
of subsequent settlements for selected trade receivable
balances on a sample basis; and (ii) evaluating management’s
assumptions used to determine the ECLs through testing of
the underlying information on the ageing reports generated
by the Group’s financial reporting system and assessing the
repayment history of the debtors as well as the forward-
looking factors with reference to the related publicly available
information. We also assessed the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.

B ERENGER - PROEFE () BUSELmEE
EHE SRR T AR AR EENRRBIER : K >)a1E
ERERARECHEREERENRR  AEARAIF &%
BB mE RS ERRRE RS EEE S RTEEBA
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BY ZBE®RE ()

Key audit matters

BREETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BRAWESTNNEERRETSHE

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

W7 E E AR EE

The Group had inventories with a carrying amount of
approximately HK$47,686,000 at 31 December 2020. The
Group performs regular review of the carrying amounts of
inventories to determine whether any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value is required after
considering, inter alia, the ageing analysis of inventories,
current market conditions and the expected future sales of
goods and usage of materials
EEER_ZT_ZTF+_A=Z=+—BERHEY
47,686,000/%-57EZ?¥,\ %lﬂrfzﬁﬁﬁﬁlﬁ
EHER  URZEE (AT ERE)FE KRR - ]’iT
A’DﬂlﬁﬁéuufﬁﬁﬂﬂijifﬁfEZiTﬁ##Fﬁ $1§?giﬁﬁéﬁgﬁazzﬂﬁ
FEMRZ AR SR FEE -

The determination of net realisable value requires
management to make significant assumptions and
estimates that affect the reported amount of inventories
and related disclosures.
AERFEREEEEEDR
ﬁﬁ&%%iﬁﬁ“&ﬁﬁ

ETREZRREEN

The related disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 17
to the consolidated financial statements.

HEAREFENRAMBHREAME24 3 K17 -
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In evaluating management’s assessment, our procedures
included: (i) observing physical inventory counts at major
locations and checking the condition of inventories; (ii)
obtaining an understanding of the net realisable value
assessments made by management; (iii) reviewing the
inventory ageing and the usage of materials subsequent to
year end; and (iv) comparing the actual selling prices of
finished goods subsequent to year end, on a sample basis, to
their carrying amounts.

AHAEERENER  PROEFE (NI BENHERE
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BYZBA®RE ()

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

ERRERAHAMEREAT - HUESBETER
FEREANEL  ETEREEAMBRE LB
ZBE RS o

BMAUGEMBHRRNERLTREEMES - &M
A ZEEME B BRI ARNETE® -

BAUMYRAMBEREANEN  BRMANETRHE
HMER  FuUdiEd  TEEMESST RGN
BRRIRPIEETBIETARBENBERFEERR
BREUFFEEREROBER - ERHFIEAITH
T MRERMRBREMEEFEERER  HMF
BHREZFE - HESIE  BIVLEEEARSE -
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BY B ETHRE (E

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

BYZBETHRE (E

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chung Chi Ming.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

24 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mEREmER

Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE_ZE_-_TF+_HA=+—HI-FE

2019
—E—NF
Notes HK$'000
Bt FET
REVENUE 1@ 5 650,408
Cost of sales $YE R AN (502,018)
Gross profit EF 148,390
Other income and gains E g A KWz 5 22,850
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAX (19,028)
General and administrative expenses  —#% & 1T B % (77,968)
Other expenses HEMRs (113)
Finance costs & AN 7 (6,075)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBL AT A 6 68,056
Income tax expense PSR 10 (12,155)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR KATREE AELFERZF
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY 55,901
EARNINGS PER SHARE AQATHBEEEBEA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EhsR2F
EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY 12
Basic and diluted HEAR KL #E HK23.3 cents &1l
62 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

e EERER

Year ended 31 December 2020 HE_ZE_-_TF+_A=+—HI-FEF

2019
—E-NF
HK$’000
FAT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREA 55,901
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) Hftt 2 E W, (E5E)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that REZBRAIgeEN D EERIBEN
may be reclassified to profit or loss in HihzmEilzm (E8)
subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation BMEGINETSHIIE =58
of foreign operations (18,417)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that REZHREETET D ERIERN
will not be reclassified to profit or HEemizs, (i)
loss in subsequent periods:
Change in fair value of a financial BAFERAREMEERES
asset at fair value through W EENRTEESD
other comprehensive income 133
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) F£REMEEUE (EE)
FOR THE YEAR (18,284)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ARAFEAAEBEFAZE
FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO W45
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 37,617
REKEERERAT 63
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

37 December 2020 —ZE-—FF+—-A=+—H

2019
—E—NF
Notes HK$'000
PEE FHEIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE RS 13 362,956
Investment properties WEME 14 26,641
Right-of-use assets TREAE 15(a) 6,657
Deposits e 19 116
Deferred tax assets BEERIRE B 25 9,166
Financial asset at fair value through BAFEEGAEM
other comprehensive income FEKENMBEE 16 4,159
Total non-current assets ERBEEE 409,695
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 17 51,928
Trade and bills receivables Z SR kRN ER 18 216,446
Prepayments, deposits and other TBRHIE - B R
receivables H A U GRIR 19 2,760
Pledged deposits and restricted cash 2 EIFFR N 2R HIE L 20 31,433
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEED 20 129,434
432,001
Assets classified as held for sale DHEAERFEHEZEE 21 5,454
Total current assets MBEERE 437,455
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Trade and bills payables B I RENFIBERENRRE 22 109,492
Other payables and accruals HEENMRIE R EAER 23 65,220
Interest-bearing bank borrowings SHEIRITER 24 84,236
Lease liabilities HEasE 15(b) 1,623
Tax payable FEFTIIE 15,959
276,530
Liabilities directly associated with EAMEAFELENEE
assets classified as held for sale BEEBEENERE 21 117
Total current liabilities mEBEeE 276,647
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEETE 160,808
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEERRBAMSR
CURRENT LIABILITIES 570,503
64 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RE MR R R

37 December 2020 —ZE_-—ZFF+_-F=+—H

2019
—T-NF
Notes HK$'000
o E FET
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEERRBAMRE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 570,503
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEamE 15(b) 567
Deposit received Biire 23 -
Deferred tax liabilities FEFRIEEE 25 22,998
Deferred income B A 23 12,086
Total non-current liabilities EmBaEERE 35,651
Net assets BEFE 534,852
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners KATRHEBAEGES
of the Company
Issued capital B TR A 26 2,400
Reserves HiE 28 532,452
Total equity B 534,852
Chan Yung Chan Wing Yin
BB R E
Director Director
o g
BRESEEERERAA 65
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RERREER

Year ended 31 December 2020 #HZE_—_ZTE_TF+_HA=+—HI-FZ

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAREAER
Fair value
resenve of
a financial
asset through Land and
Share other building Exchange
Issued premium Capital - comprehensive revaluation fluctuation Reserve Retained Total
capital account reserve income reserve reserve funds* profits equity
HARKEE
etakigs
BEfT b EENTE  HHREF EX
2 HE% oSt e Btk REEE  RREe: RE&H iR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TFhT T AL TL AT T TAL ThL T
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\F+ZA=1-A 2,400 62,609 60,455 1,107 485 8,348 43,309 332,940 511,653
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 RABEIBREENE16%
e - - - - - - - 19 (19
At 1 January 2019 (restated) WZE-AE-F-RB(EE7)) 2,400 62,609 60,455 1,107 485 8348 43,309 332,922 511,635
Profit for the year FREF - - - - - - - 55,901 55,901
Other comprehensive income/(loss) FREMZENE/ (58):
for the year:
Change i fair value of a finandial asset —BRATEHAEMEE
at fair value through other hama T EES
comprehensive income LTEEY - - - 133 - - - - 133
Exchange differences on translation of BEBNEBMERLER
foreign operations - - - - - (18,417) - - (18,417)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year FR2E N/ (Ki8) @5 - - - 133 - (18417) - 55,901 37,617
Transfer from retained profits ERBREER - - - - - - 5,081 (5,081) -
2018 inal dividend “E-\FRERE - - - - - - - (14,400 (14,400)
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-AF+-A=1-H 2,400 62,609* 60,455 1,240¢ 485* (10,069)* 48,390 369,342° 534,852
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mEEREER

Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE_ZT_-_FTF+_HA=+—HILFZ

Attributable to owners of the Company

RARRE AL
Fair value
reserve
of a financial
asset through Land and
Share other building Exchange
Issued premium Capital comprehensive  revaluation  fluctuation Retained
capital account reserve income reserve reserve profits
TARMRE
W
B&fT R HHEE THRETF i)
&% HER RARE ATERR EftGf RHRE  RREES: REEH BEs
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TR TER TER TR TER TER TEn TR TER
At 1 January 2020 RZZZTF-F-H 2,400 62,609 60,455 1,240 (10,069) 48,390 369,342 534,852
Profit for the year ERE| 38,702 38,702
Other comprehensive income/(loss) FREMZERE/(58):
for the year:
Change in fair value of a financial asset —BRATESALMEE
atfair value through other WanHBEEN
comprehensive income LTEEY
Exchange differences on translation of BEBNEBNELEE

foreign operations

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year £A2ENE/ (B8 L% - 38,702

Transfer from retained profits BREREEN 3,846 (3,846)

At 31 December 2020 R-B-FE+-F=+-H 2,400 62,609 60,455 485° 23,306 52,236 404,198 606,871

* Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for foreign investment — * REHEINRIRE R ERR AR - B TFRIINPEARKEN

enterprises, a portion of the profits of certain subsidiaries established in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") is required to be transferred to the
PRC reserve funds which are restricted as to use. These PRC entities are not
required to effect any further transfer when the amount of the PRC reserve
funds reaches 50% of their registered capital. The PRC reserve funds can be
used to make good their future losses or to increase their registered capital.

# These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of

H((HEDOMBARNBIEFIAERETEFEERS M
ZERBEASOABZIRE - ETRRBESNSEENLE
FEEEEMAAA50% B - RIREEHEE — SR -
B A R AR B R RS 1R AT 4 s R A AN AR AS

¢ ZERBRF RENGAMBRRERNNEEHH604,471,000

HK$604,471,000 (2019: HK$532,452,000) in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

L (ZZF— L4 : 532,452,0007T) °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER

Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE_ZE_-_TF+_HA=+—HI-FE

2019
—E-hEF
Notes HK$’000
Pt 3 TET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REETHFERERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax R B AT & £ 68,056
Adjustments for: TP EIBRE
Finance costs BhE KA 7 6,075
Bank interest income RITH S A 5 (598)
Depreciation of property, WE - WEREETE
plant and equipment 6 27,993
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEITE 6 2,048
Reversal of write-down of OO B 2= 0] B3R5 E
inventories to net realisable value 6 (408)
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) B S ER AL EREE
of trade and bills receivables RIE, CREER) 6 211)
Fair value gain on investment EMERTFERE
properties 5,6 (1,387)
Amortisation of deferred income i FE T 8 5 (1,500)
Write-off of items of property, MHEYE - BERZREEER
plant and equipment 6 58
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of HEWE -« MENEEEE
property, plant and equipment B8 (UEs) 5,6 (306)
Realisation of exchange fluctuation i —EM B A R R EE 2
reserve upon deregistration of a b X R BN
subsidiary 5 (5,333)
Impairment of other receivables H At R IERE 6 27
94,514
Decrease in inventories FERL 9,072
Decrease/(increase) in trade and bills B o EWNZBE N EKREE
receivables A, (3G m) 35,800
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments,  JEfIEUIE - &4 R A M FEL
deposits and other receivables IR, () 5,590
Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills B S E A R ER R
payables g,/ CRd) (13,887)
Decrease in other payables and accruals E #b JE 1 218 & fEEH 2 R (6,062)
Exchange realignment M 5 AR (2,222)
Cash generated from operations EEBKENRE 122,805
Interest received EHFIE 598
Interest paid EARFE (6,075)
Hong Kong profits tax refunded/(paid) &[],/ (2) FHEFIEH 19
Overseas taxes paid EREINEIR (8,261)
Net cash flows from operating activities 484 EE TSRS R EFE 109,086
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER

Year ended 31 December 2020 HE_ZE_-_TF+_A=+—HI-FEF

2019
—FNF
Notes HK$'000
B 5E FHETT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REFBFEHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, plant BEBEYE - MEKRREER
and equipment (8,535)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEMZE - WEREZHEIAEB
property, plant and equipment FriSskIE 5,263
Deposits paid for purchases of items of BEE ¥ - MELXREER
property, plant and equipment Frit e (3,692)
Receipts of government grants W ER BT #R 4,589
Decrease/(increase) in certain time and & FE 8RBT FERRLD
bank deposits pledged as security (3Eh0) - EEMRER TIRTT
for certain banking facilities and RUE N R =i 2 1R
bills payable (526)
Decrease in restricted cash P #1428 4 5 > 498
Deposit received Biire -
Net cash flows from/(used in) wEEBAE, (FTA)
investing activities REMEFH (2,403)
CASH FLOWS FROM BMEETHFERERE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
New bank borrowings FTIZIRITIERX 223,845
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEN (317,484)
Principal portion of lease payments MENFAR IS 29(a) (2,663)
Dividend paid ERIRE (14,400)
Net cash flows used in BB EETAR S REFERE
financing activities (110,702)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH R KBRS ZEEYEE
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24, i) (4,019)
Cash and cash equivalents at FYRe LReEEY
beginning of year 135,876
Cash and cash equivalents included in 5t AN B AZFEHENEER
assets classified as held for sale HeRIBEEED 21 (1,134)
Cash and cash equivalents reclassified B DA AFEHEEESH
from assets classified as held for sales 9 ¥R 4 RIS EEY) 21 -
Effect of foreign exchange rate [EREH)FE
changes, net (1,289)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT S£XBEERRLEEY
END OF YEAR 129,434
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH BRE&RELZBYEBIA
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTHEER 20 129,434
REEEEZERAERATA
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The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
8 July 2014 as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 of the Cayman
Islands. The address of the registered office of the
Company is Clifton House, P.O. Box 1350, 75 Fort Street,
Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. The principal
place of business of the Company is located at Room 809-
810, Kwong Sang Hong Centre, 151-153 Hoi Bun Road,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was principally engaged in the
manufacture and sale of printed circuit boards.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). In the opinion of the directors, the immediate
holding company and the ultimate holding company of the
Company is Million Pearl Holdings Ltd., which is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

ARATRZZE—NFLANARBHREHES
NRERREEHEFESTMK I AEREER
NaE] o AN TR E E I A Clifton House,
P.O. Box 1350, 75 Fort Street, Grand Cayman
KY1-1108, Cayman Islands © KR A E B &8
B AT B LR EIE B BB 151-153 R EETTH
Lr809-810F °

TR AREET 2R FRERHEERERER -

RRBIRORERBBEERHMAER DA ([HBA
Frl)EREM - E2RE - AAFICEBERA
AIRGEERATANEBERRES MK
372 Million Pearl Holdings Ltd. ©

Information about subsidiaries EEMELARNESR
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows: RAEIMBABFFEET -
Place of Issued ordinary
incorporation/ share capital/  Percentage of equity
registration and paid-up  attributable to the
Name business registered capital Company Principal activities
SR, BRATEERE
£ BRRLES b BREAMRE AQARGEBZEI TRER
Direct  Indirect
B &
Yan Tat Group Limited British Virgin Islands/ Us$100 100 - Investment holding
Hong Kong
RBERREE/BA 10057t REER
Jumbo Height Limited British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong
ERBRRA EEERAREE/BE 1%7T REER
Vital Alliance Global Limited British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong
ZERRFBR AR RBRRARESE/EE (E REHER
Yan Tat (HK) Industrial Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 - 100 Trading of printed circuit
boards
BE(BB)EXERAA BA 5,000,000 7T ERARIERR
Yan Tat Technology Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100 Trading of printed circuit
boards
BENBBRARA BA 1,000,000 %7 BEORIZRR

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020
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Place of Issued ordinary
incorporation/ share capital/  Percentage of equity
registration and paid-up attributable to the
Name business registered capital Company Principal activities
R, ERTEERE/
g B ES S E BRAMRE AQARGEZEIL TEXK
Direct  Indirect
EE &
Yan Tat International Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Trading of printed circuit
boards
BERBRAERATF £ 18T EEHRIZER
Yan Tat Global Company Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Inactive
BERNARRA 0] 187 &R
Yan Tat Printed Circuits PRC/Mainland China HK$165,000,000 - 100 Manufacturing and sale
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. ** of printed circuit boards
BEER(RINARRA" B/ BN 165,000,000 7T BE DR E IR E R AR
Grace Yan Tat Electronics PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 100 Property holding
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. "#
RREEF(RINARAA"* B/ BN ARHE RENE
1,000,0007T
Yan Tat Environmental Technology PRC/Mainland China RMB43,100,000 - 100 Property holding
(Nantong) Co., Ltd. " #
HRBERRMEAERAR " HE/HmER PN RENE
43,100,0007T
Notes: MiEE

# The English names of these companies represent the best effort

Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under PRC law.

Registered as a limited liability company under PRC law.

s

made by management of the Company to directly translate their
Chinese names as these companies did not register any official

English names.

RiEPBEAREMBINEBEDE -

REFEERZEIMABRAF -

ZERAMRXEBDARREEBRRAS HEED

REPXEREAE BB

XA -

REEEZERARAA
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These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for a financial asset at fair value
through other comprehensive income and investment
properties which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HK$") and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2020. A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020
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Basis of consolidation (continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the
date that such control ceases.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or
loss. The Group’'s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to
profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018 and the following revised HKFRSs
for the first time for the current year’s financial statements.
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions (early adopted)
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material

and HKAS 8

REEE(E)

M@ AREARR 2 BERENBEHER - A
R —REABERER - MBAR 2 REHAS
EEUSESE BREAHE  WEELRS AR
ERENERLERRILE -

EEEARREZEERAE s KA
RXRAEEKERAAEZXSHEBZR SRS
REFARBRZHENE

5 E RIERBRIA LAt = TR RFE
h-ERZIERE  AAEEGEGRTINAE
HIREHR - HEBLREEEEDNE S (L&
REZESE) - ARIIERRRS -

HAEEAR LS —FINB AR g - BIEL
LR ZME AR 2 EE(BREHE) LEE
(ii) 1 {rT SE422 A3 ARE 2 2 B 10 B [ (i) A M 2 D RE 8%
ZEFZSHER  REROARREZATE
(il) FTER BAE IR E 2 & FE K (i) B e A E
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ELEREEERBBEMERNAREESH
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The nature and the impact of the Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting 2018 and the revised HKFRSs are
described below:

(a)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018
(the "Conceptual Framework"”) sets out a
comprehensive set of concepts for financial reporting
and standard setting, and provides guidance for
preparers of financial statements in developing
consistent accounting policies and assistance to all
parties to understand and interpret the standards.
The Conceptual Framework includes new chapters
on measurement and reporting financial
performance, new guidance on the derecognition of
assets and liabilities, and updated definitions and
recognition criteria for assets and liabilities. It also
clarifies the roles of stewardship, prudence and
measurement uncertainty in financial reporting. The
Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and none
of the concepts contained therein override the
concepts or requirements in any standard. The
Conceptual Framework did not have any significant
impact on the financial position and performance of
the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide
additional guidance on the definition of a business.
The amendments clarify that for an integrated set of
activities and assets to be considered a business, it
must include, at a minimum, an input and a
substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create output. A business
can exist without including all of the inputs and
processes needed to create outputs. The
amendments remove the assessment of whether
market participants are capable of acquiring the
business and continue to produce outputs. Instead,
the focus is on whether acquired inputs and acquired
substantive processes together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
amendments have also narrowed the definition of
outputs to focus on goods or services provided to
customers, investment income or other income from
ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance to assess whether an acquired
process is substantive and introduce an optional fair
value concentration test to permit a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities
and assets is not a business. The Group has applied
the amendments prospectively to transactions or
other events that occurred on or after 1 January
2020. The amendments did not have any impact on
the financial position and performance of the Group.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020
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Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
address issues affecting financial reporting in the
period before the replacement of an existing interest
rate benchmark with an alternative risk-free rate
("RFR™). The amendments provide temporary reliefs
which enable hedge accounting to continue during
the period of uncertainty before the introduction of
the alternative RFR. In addition, the amendments
require companies to provide additional information
to investors about their hedging relationships which
are directly affected by these uncertainties. The
amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group as
the Group does not have any interest rate hedging
relationships.

Amendment to HKFRS 16 provides a practical
expedient for lessees to elect not to apply lease
modification accounting for rent concessions arising
as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic.
The practical expedient applies only to rent
concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the
pandemic and only if (i) the change in lease
payments results in revised consideration for the
lease that is substantially the same as, or less than,
the consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change; (ii) any reduction in lease
payments affects only payments originally due on or
before 30 June 2021; and (iii) there is no substantive
change to other terms and conditions of the lease.
The amendment is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 June 2020 with earlier
application permitted and shall be applied
retrospectively. The amendment did not have any
significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states that
information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements. The amendments clarify
that materiality will depend on the nature or
magnitude of information, or both. The amendments
did not have any significant impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group.
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The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?
Amendments to HKFRS 9,  Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, — Phase 2"
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10  Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 (2011) between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture*
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®
Amendments to HKFRS 17  Insurance Contracts®®

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current®:>
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use?
Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?
Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16,
and HKAS 412

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

1

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

5 As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong

Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October 2020 to align
the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

6 As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in
October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary
exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than
HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023

76 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected

to be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a
reference to the previous Framework for the Preparation
and Presentation of Financial Statements with a reference
to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
issued in June 2018 without significantly changing its
requirements. The amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an
exception to its recognition principle for an entity to refer
to the Conceptual Framework to determine what
constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception specifies
that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be
within the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they
were incurred separately rather than assumed in a business
combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer to
HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively instead of the
Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the amendments
clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition
at the acquisition date. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments prospectively from 1 January 2022. Since the
amendments apply prospectively to business combinations
for which the acquisition date is on or after the date of
first application, the Group will not be affected by these

amendments on the date of transition.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4
and HKFRS 16 address issues not dealt with in the previous
amendments which affect financial reporting when an
existing interest rate benchmark is replaced with an
alternative risk-free rate (“RFR"). The Phase 2 amendments
provide a practical expedient to allow the effective interest
rate to be updated without adjusting the carrying amount
when accounting for changes in the basis for determining
the contractual cash flows of financial assets and liabilities,
if the change is a direct consequence of the interest rate
benchmark reform and the new basis for determining the
contractual cash flows is economically equivalent to the
previous basis immediately preceding the change.
Furthermore, the amendments require an entity to disclose
additional information to enable users of financial
statements to understand the effect of interest rate
benchmark reform on an entity’s financial instruments and
risk management strategy. The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
and shall be applied retrospectively, but entities are not

required to restate the comparative information.

The Group had certain interest-bearing bank borrowings
denominated in United States dollars based on the London
Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR") as at 31 December 2020.
If the interest rates of these borrowings are replaced by
RFRs in a future period, the Group will apply this practical
expedient upon the modification of these borrowings
when the “economically equivalent” criterion is met and
expects that no significant modification gain or loss will
arise as a result of applying the amendments to these

changes.
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Annual Improvements to HKFRS 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, Illustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendment that is expected to be applicable to the Group

are as set out below:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments clarifies the fees that an
entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a new
or modified financial liability are substantially different
from the terms of the original financial liability. These fees
include only those paid or received between the borrower
and the lender, including fees paid or received by either
the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. An entity
applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are
modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the
annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the
amendment. The amendment is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendment is not expected
to have a significant impact on the Group’s financial

statements.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and an
equity investment at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their

economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best
use or by selling it to another market participant that

would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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Fair value measurement (continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for
which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for
which the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.
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Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, investment properties, deferred tax assets and
financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its
fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i)
(ii)
(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.
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Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment
to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

2.2% t0 4%
33'3%

9% to 18%
9% to 33"3%
30% to 33'/3%

Leasehold land and buildings
Leasehold improvements

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress mainly represents buildings and
leasehold improvements under construction, which are
stated at cost less any impairment losses, and are not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold property held as a right-of-use
asset which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business.
Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting
period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of
profit or loss in the year which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of the
property at the date of change in use is accounted for as
follows:

(@) any resulting decrease in the carrying amount of the
property is recognised in profit or loss in the period
the change in use takes place; or

(b) any resulting increase in the carrying amount is
recognised in profit or loss, to the extent that the
increase reverses a previous impairment loss for that
property. The amount recognised in profit or loss
does not exceed the amount needed to restore the
carrying amount of the property to the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the property. Any remaining part of
the increase in the carrying amount is recognised in
other comprehensive income and increase the land
and building revaluation reserve within equity. On
subsequent disposal of the investment property, the
relevant portion of the land and building revaluation
reserve realised may be transferred to retained profits
as a movement in reserves.
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Non-current assets and disposal groups held for
sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through a sales transaction rather than through
continuing use. For this to be the case, the asset or
disposal group must be available for immediate sale in its
present condition subject only to terms that are usual and
customary for the sale of such assets or disposal groups
and its sale must be highly probable. All assets and
liabilities of subsidiaries classified as a disposal group are
reclassified as held for sale.

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than
financial assets) classified as held for sale are measured at
the lower of their carrying amounts and fair values less
costs to sell. Property, plant and equipment classified as
held for sale are not depreciated.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(@)  Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms
and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the
Group by the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful
life of the asset.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)  Lease liabilities
Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease
payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as
an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if
there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each of its
leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
asset are classified as operating leases. When a contract
contains lease and non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over
the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement
of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as
rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue
in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee
are accounted for as finance leases.
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Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost and fair value
through other comprehensive income.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset
at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI")
on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with
cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at
fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business
model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, while
financial assets classified and measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business
models are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled
to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised
as other income in the statement of profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably, except when the Group benefits from
such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the
financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in
other comprehensive income. Equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income are not
subject to impairment assessment.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible
within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of
the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 180 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset
to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A
financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within
the following stages for measurement of ECLs except for
trade and bills receivables which apply the simplified
approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 —  Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage2 ~ —  Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage3 —  Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade and bills receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group
applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect
of a significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.
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Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities of the Group are classified, at initial
recognition, as loans and borrowings.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a
new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis and, in the case of work in progress and
finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated
costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it
is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the statement of
profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries/
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.
When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised
as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the
costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are
expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released to
the statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life
of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

Employee benefits

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group's employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate
in Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.
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Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.

Revenue from the sale of printed circuit boards is
recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is
transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the
printed circuit boards.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part
of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority to
declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends
are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.
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Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

e
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The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements:

Determination of functional currency

In determining the functional currency of each entity of
the Group, judgement is required to determine and
consider the currency that mainly influences sales prices of
goods; the currency that mainly influences costs of
providing goods; the currency in which funds from
financing activities are generated; and the currency in
which receipts from operating activities are usually
retained, etc. The functional currency of each entity is
determined based on management’s assessment of the
primary economic environment in which the entities
operate. When the indicators are mixed and the functional
currency is not obvious, management uses its judgement
to determine the functional currency that most faithfully
represents the economic effects of the underlying
transactions, events and conditions.

Transfer of construction in progress to property,
plant and equipment

Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use. Thereafter, depreciation is
calculated on a straight-line basis to write off the cost of
such property, plant and equipment to its residual value
over its estimated useful life. This requires management’s
judgement to determine when the project under
construction is substantially ready for its intended use.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020
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Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Measurement of an unlisted equity investment at fair
value

The fair value of an unlisted equity investment that is not
traded in an active market is estimated by management
with reference to valuation performed by an independent
professionally qualified valuer by using valuation technique
that requires various sources of information and
assumptions. The carrying amount of the Group’s unlisted
equity investment at 31 December 2020 was
HK$4,311,000 (2019: HK$4,159,000).

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for
similar properties, the Group considers information from a
variety of sources, including;

(@) current prices in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition or location, adjusted to
reflect those differences; and

(b) recent prices of similar properties on less active
markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes in
economic conditions since the date of the
transactions that occurred at those prices.

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31
December 2020 was HK$28,933,000 (2019:
HK$26,641,000). Further details, including the key
assumptions used for fair value measurement are given in
note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

The Group performs regular review of the carrying amount
of inventories to determine whether any write- down of
inventories to net realisable value is required after
considering, inter alia, the ageing analysis of the Group’s
inventories and subsequent sales made and materials used.
Write-down of inventories will be made when the
estimated net realisable value of inventories decline below
their carrying amount. Net realisable value of inventories is
based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs
to be incurred to completion and disposal. These estimates
are made with reference to the current market conditions
and the historical experience of manufacturing and selling
products of a similar nature. Actual selling prices and
saleability/usage of goods/materials might be different
from estimations and profit or loss could be affected by
differences in the estimations.
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Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate
implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental
borrowing rate (“IBR") to measure lease liabilities. The IBR
is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to
borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The
IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have to
pay”, which requires estimation when no observable rates
are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into
financing transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to
reflect the terms and conditions of the lease (for example,
when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional currency).
The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such
as market interest rates) when available and is required to
make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the
subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).

Provision for income taxes

Provision for income tax is made based on the taxable
income for the period as determined by the Group. The
determination of taxable income involves the exercise of
judgement on interpretation of the relevant tax rules and
regulations. The amounts of income tax and hence profit
or loss could be affected by any interpretations and
clarifications which the tax authorities may issue from time
to time.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade and bills
receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for
trade and bills receivables. The provision rates are based on
days past due for groupings of various customer segments
that have similar loss patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience
with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast
economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are
expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead
to an increased number of defaults in the manufacturing
sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At each
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade and bills
receivables (continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and
ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is
sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also
not be representative of a customer’s actual default in the
future. The information about the ECLs on the Group’s
trade and bills receivables is disclosed in note 18 to the
financial statements.

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for withholding tax in
respect of certain unremitted earnings of certain
subsidiaries of the Group established in Mainland China to
the extent that the directors are of the opinion that it
would be probable for distribution in the foreseeable
future. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax liabilities that should
be recognised. Further details are contained in note 25 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the tax losses can be utilised.
Recognition of deferred tax assets primarily involves
management judgement and estimations regarding the
taxable profits of the entities in which the losses arose.
Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies.

The Group focused primarily on the manufacture and sale
of printed circuit boards during the year. Information
reported to the Group’s chief operating decision maker,
for the purpose of resource allocation and performance
assessment, focuses on the operating results of the Group
as a whole as the Group's resources are integrated and no
discrete operating segment financial information is
available. Accordingly, no operating segment information
is presented.
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Geographical information
(@) Revenue from external customers

i E & R
(a) REIIBEEHURE

2019

—T-NF

HK$'000

FET

Mainland China 5 (A i 273,300

Europe M 158,440

Hong Kong e 13,618

North America JEEM 34,848
Asia (except Mainland China and M EER R A REE)

Hong Kong) 156,337
Africa FEM 13,754
Oceania KAEM 106
South America mEM 5

650,408

The revenue information above is based on the
locations of the customers who placed the orders.

(b) Non-current assets

RS EMTIER T ERENTP A
ih

(b) FARBEE

2019
—ENF
HK$'000
THT

Hong Kong HE
Mainland China R B (A 3t

3,072
393,298

396,370

The non-current asset information above is based on
the locations of the assets and excludes a financial
asset at fair value through other comprehensive
income and deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers
Revenue from each major customer which accounted for
10% or more of the Group's revenue is set out below:

HHERBEEERENEEMELE
7 AT B/ —ERATEFAREMER
Was B # B E R AEE -

FHEXERFNESR
KEEETEEPHME (EAEEE 10% 3 IA
B &

2019
—E-NEF
HK$'000
FAT
Customer A ZEA 227,074
Customer B ZFB 83,779
310,853
1 OO Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020



Notes to Financial Statements

B IS SRR M AL

37 December 2020 —ZE_-—ZFF+_-F=+—H

Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEHNZWAR

(i) Disaggregated revenue information (i) DHEBEER
The Group's entire revenue from the goods AREBMMAECDEENEYRENE —HE
transferred is recognised at a point in time. BHER o

(i) Performance obligations (i) BITEH
Information about the Group’s performance BRAEEEITERBHNERMNT
obligations is summarised below:
Sale of printed circuit boards HEHIFIE R
The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery BAIEER TR E R BZEX - miT
of the printed circuit boards and payment is generally FEFE BN 30E 90 AREIE (—#
due within 30 to 90 days from delivery, except for ATER BRI EFRRIN) ©

new customers, where payment in advance is
normally required.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as Wogs - HAUWA R s o Esan T
follows:
2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
FHET
Revenue from contracts with REEEAHz WS
customers
Sale of goods HEE M 650,408
Other income Hibl A
Bank interest income HRITHEWA 598
Rental income HEWA 312
Government grants” AT F R 9,058
Others H 4
9,972
Gains Wz
Fair value gains on investment properties "EYHE 2 A FENE 1,387
Gains on disposal of items of property, HEME - FEM&RE
plant and equipment 18 B U 306
Sales of scraps SHE RE i 2,290
Foreign exchange gain, net PE H W a5 5 3,548
Realisation of exchange fluctuation reserve  sF 44— M B A TIRF 417 2
upon deregistration of a subsidiary ER A E ] 5,333
Others HA 14
12,878
22,850
The government grants recognised during the year mainly " FAE RO BUT AL E 2B WEUE 8 & TEF Bk
represented grants received from certain government authorities of FIEBPI B HRMRL - URBAKEERR R RRER
the PRC in recognition of the Group’s efforts in environmental BT REFENE N
awareness and protection and technological development.
REKEERERAT
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The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ REERBRBEAEF DI (GTA) -

(crediting):

2019

—E-NF

Notes HK$'000
BT 5T FHIT

Cost of inventories sold"@ BEGFERAEK"e 502,018

Auditor’s remuneration Z SR B & 2,084

Depreciation of property, plant and M - WEREBEHETE

equipment 13 27,993
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHREEEITE 15(a) 2,048
Employee benefit expense® (including EERAMFEXC(BEKRE

directors’ and chief executive’s R8N EEREE

remuneration as disclosed in note 8): TTBRAEME)

Wages, salaries, allowances, bonuses, TE - %< 28

commission and benefits in kind B4 - Ae REWER 94,221

Pension scheme contributions BRIREFTEIMHR
(defined contribution schemes) (FEsHZETED 215
Other employee benefits HitnE B1& 7 8,654
103,090

Research and development costs" 9t M B R Ak AN # 7,752

Write-off of items of property, plant M - WERFRHEIRE

and equipment i 85 13 58
Reversal of write-down of inventories to BEOMoRFER

net realisable value® AT IR B (408)
Fair value gains on investment properties SEYERN T ERE 5 (1,387)
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of “”%F‘Hﬁz RIE N eI Z i

trade and bills receivables BB, CRERE D) 18 211)
Impairment of other receivables* HAth & W R TR R E * 27
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property, HEWE « BE K& E

plant and equipment* ER BB (Wes)! 5 (306)
Realisation of exchange fluctuation reserve T8 — B M B A A RF &R 2

upon deregistration of a subsidiary* M 5 R B 8 * 5 (5,333)

Foreign exchange differences, net* PE 5 A KA SRR (3,548)

* These gains are included in “Other income and gains” and the * RERABER - Wt A TEMBA RS - mEE
losses are included in “General and administrative expenses”, as AlFFA T—R RITERBF S J (@A) »
appropriate, in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

# These gains are included in “Other income and gains” and the # aiEER WEAATEBKRARIKE] - fEE
losses are included in “Other expenses”, as appropriate, in the E\J;,H\ [Hapa J(aniEEm) -
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

e Employee benefit expense of HK$38,840,000 (2019: e W ER A 1B % % 38,840,000 T( = F — N F:
HK$54,328,000) is included in “Cost of inventories sold” in the 54,328,000/ 7T) KB B @RS Al EFEMA]
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

" Reversal of write-down of inventories to net realisable value is " iR RER  BRMRATFEZAE#RFEFAIRE
included in “Cost of inventories sold” in the consolidated statement FERAE] -
of profit or loss.

" Research and development costs are included in “General and ”" RIFEBRER MRERERKAAGFAT KR ETEHA
administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or X1

loss.

1 OZ Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020
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2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
FHET
Interest on: AN EIEHNFE
Bank loans and trust receipt loans RITERRIEFBIRE R 5,944
Lease liabilities HEAE 131
6,075
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, RIBHE R FTEES AR ([ EmARALD - BER
disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of AHEAIZE383(1)@) * (b) * QROERBESDE(H
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), BEENREMAME _HBRENFEESR
section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong FE2THMABFHMEIIOT ¢
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Hong Kong
Companies (Disclosure of information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
FHET
Fees t=4:3] 1,428
Other emoluments: E A -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EREREWER 4,592
Commission Be 4,486
Pension scheme contributions EIREEHEIE R 18
9,096
10,524
REKEERERAT
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (continued)
(@) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors
during the year were as follows:

8.

ESERTETHRAESHM &)

(a) BIUFHITESE
FABNBIFRITEEZERNT :

2019
—ZE-NF
HK$'000
FET

Mr. Chung Yuk Ming 8 KA A
Mr. Yau Wing Yiu ERER 1B 5T
Mr. Lau Shun Chuen 2B %%

204
204
204

612

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2019: Nil).

1 04 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020
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EERFETBRAEHM )
(b) BTES FUTESRERTHEA
8

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8.

REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) Executive directors, a non-executive
director and the chief executive

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind Commission contributions remuneration
- 11954 Efke
ER ENFlE e ST st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT TET THT THET
2020 - o33
Executive directors: HITESE
Mr. Chan Wing Yin* TREEE ST+ -
Mrs. Chan Yung BBzt -
Mr. Chan Yan Wing BREXTE 3,129
3,129
Non-executive director: FRTES:
Mr. Chan Yan Kwong BB EE
2019 “EB-nF
Executive directors: HITES
Mr. Chan Wing Yin* BREB F ke 204 1,823 - - 2,027
Mrs. Chan Yung REL+ 204 1,417 - - 1,621
Mr. Chan Yan Wing BREXESE 204 1,011 4,486 18 5,719
612 4,251 4,486 18 9,367
Non-executive director: FHTEE
Mr. Chan Yan Kwong RAXEAE 204 34 - - 545
816 4,592 4,486 18 9,912
* Mr. Chan Wing Yin is also the chief executive officer of the BRECE S TR ARITTHAREL ©

Company.

FABEBLFBEESSATETHRABRR
RARABRETAHFM T —NF - &) -

There was no arrangement under which a director or
the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year (2019: Nil).

RESEERERAT
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The five highest paid employees during the year included FRNAIEEmFTHEERE=2(Z2—NF:
three directors (2019: three directors), details of whose ZR)EF - HHBFBEHN L8 88 T
remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the ME(ZZE—NF : MB) ZaHoES BTIER
remuneration for the year of the remaining two (2019: ARAEBNEFBITRAER) RERNFIFS
two) highest paid employees who are neither a director sRIANT

nor the chief executive of the Company are as follows:

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
FHET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥4 - 28 REWHZ 2,725
Pension scheme contributions IRREETEIE R 36

2,761

The number of non-director and non-chief executive FTHERUTHENSSEHIEES GEEEMIE
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within FETHRAE) ABEIIMT
the following bands is as follows:

Number of employees

EEHE
2019
—E-hF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z% 1,000,000 7T -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 & 7T = 1,500,000 % 7T 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 % 7 2,000,000 # 7T -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 77T 2 2,500,000 %8 7T -
2
The non-director and non-chief executive highest paid FEFRIIFETHABNESHHEE TR
employees are also members of senior management of the REBSREEENHKE o
Group.
1 06 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2019: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the year, except for one
subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying entity under
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The first
HK$2,000,000 (2019: HK$2,000,000) of assessable profits
of this subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% (2019: 8.25%) and
the remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5% (2019:
16.5%). Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions
in which the Group operates.

The provision for land appreciation tax has been estimated
according to the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC
laws and regulations. Land appreciation tax has been
provided at ranges of progressive rates of the appreciation
value, with certain allowable deductions.

All subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC are
subject to PRC corporate income tax at a standard rate of
25% (2019: 25%) during the year, except for a subsidiary
of the Group which qualified as a High and New
Technology Enterprise in Mainland China and a lower PRC
corporate income tax rate of 15% (2019: 15%) has been
applied for the year.

BEBAFESRNIEFANRNEBSEEN G ERT
A 16.5% (ZF—NLF : 16.5%) sHehE -
HAEBHN BB RFIRIN ZRBABFEM
BEFEHEREHNENER - ZMBRAREE
2,000,000/ jt ( —Z — JL4 : 2,000,0007% 7T )
A JE RR 0% R 128.25% (=& — AL 4F : 8.25%)
M REH  ERERF A AIZ165% (ZF
—NLF 1 16.5%) BT R EFR o E b ih [ 9 FE 3R
HENEBEEREAEBLEMEEERD
WMITRETE -

THIREN 2 BEC IR AR BEAD AR
B REELMER - DHIBERIZIEEBERS
AT AR BRR - IEEH R 2 RE R
=

FRAREERPBEIANTERBQRER
25% (T —L4F : 25%) RIZEFE R T AR 5
DEMEH - EAREE—REMHERQFERER
FESTFRMEENER  RERERIEANTEH
PEMEBHREIS% (T —EF - 15%) 8F -

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
FAT
Current — Hong Kong Vel — &%
Charge for the year FAZH 1,050
Underprovision/(overprovision) in BEFEREIR
prior years (FREEAAR) (40)
Current — Mainland China BER — At
Charge for the year FRZH 7,064
Overprovision in prior years BEFEBREEE (857)
Deferred (note 25) ERE (PH5E25) 4,938
Total tax charge for the year FARIESZ KB 12,155

REKEEZRARARF
3R 2020
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A reconciliation of the tax charge applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rate for Hong Kong in which
the principal place of business of the Company and certain
of its major subsidiaries is located, to the tax charge at the
effective tax rate, and a reconciliation of the applicable
rate (i.e., the statutory tax rate) to the effective tax rate,
are as follows:

BARBRETEIEZWB AR ZTEEEME
RE B HATE B R 5 B AR BB AR R e i
FERERBEAENORENYE - LERK
R OANEERR) BEFRBROHBRHIMT -

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000 %
FET

Profit before tax Rk 75 B 1) 68,056
Tax at the Hong Kong BEBEAEMETERIR

statutory tax rate 11,229 16.5
Effect of different tax rates for PR EEEMN IR R

specific entities in the PRC 2R (935) (1.4)
Adjustment in respect of current gt i@ 1 B s 5 A< HA TR TE A9

tax of previous periods SRR (897) (1.3)
Income not subject to tax AR 2 WA (1,353) (2.0)
Expenses not deductible for tax A% 2 2 H 1,183 1.7
Effect of withholding tax at 5% 7N [ rh B [ B A &5t

on the distributable profits of Al 73 R R AR 5% B

the Group’s PRC subsidiary MEIERBIAESE

Ve 1,962 2.9

Tax losses not recognised RERBIBBE 882 1.3
Additional deduction for research #ff 7 12 3% & A 258 SN H15R

and development costs (2,147) (3.2
Land appreciation tax T I E 728 1.1
Others Hih 1,503 2.3
Tax charge at the Group's BEAEEERMNERATER

effective rate R1E 12,155 17.9

The Board recommended to declare a final dividend of
HK6.0 cents (2019: Nil) per ordinary share, equivalent to a
total amount of HK$14,400,000 (2019: Nil), for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

1 08 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

13.

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE

COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount for
the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company is based on the profit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the Company of HK$38,702,000
(2019: HK$55,901,000) and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares of 240,000,000 (2019: 240,000,000) in

issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per
share amounts presented for the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019 in respect of a dilution as the Group had
no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during these

years.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

At 1 January 2020: R-B-BE-f-R:
Cost A

Accumulated depreciation 2ifirE

Net carrying amount BEEE

At 1 January 2020, et of

RZZ-ZF-A-8"

accumulated depreciation BAREHNE

Additions AE

Transfers &%

Transfer from deposits for apaEEn: .
purchases of property, BERSENRE
plant and equipment

Disposals HE

Write-off s

Depreciation provided during RN ERE
the year

Exchange realignment E R A%

Reclassification from assets held ~ EH HBAZEHEZ
for sale (note 21) BE(Wstar)

At 31 December 2020, netof ~ RZF=FF
accumulated depreciation T-A=+-8

[REiIES g

At 31 December 2020: WZE-%%F

tZA=+-R

Cost AR

Accumulated depreciation ZitiE

Net carrying amount FEFE

Land and
buildings

THRET

HK$'000
Fin

186,821

(37,246)

149,575

149,575

(6,933)
9,506

3,594

155,742

206,012
(50,270)

155,742

Construction
in progress

ERIE
HK$'000
TiEn

67,287
3,038

(4,129)

69,634

69,634

12.

13.

Leasehold
improvements

HERE
HKS'000
Tin

19472
(16,373)

3,099 138,104 3335

(1,770)

21,414
(19,040)

2,374 126,393 4,786

AR EBREEFEARGERER

FRARAEBERFTEABRGZERERR
FEBENREBEAARERESFEEABEFR
s 71 38,702,000 7T (== — .4 : 55,901,000
BIL)IRAFEERITLTARMNEFLHH
240,000,000 % ( == — /1, 4F : 240,000,000 % )

S o

HRAEREREE T _TFR_T—NF+=
A=+ - RULFEYEABRGCEIYE 2O E
TTEBRE - RYERECEEEZEFEEI 2
BREXABNSRIFHAE -

M BERRKRE

Furniture,
fixtures and
equipment
e EE
RERZR RE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAn AR TAL

Motor
vehicles Total

Plant and
machinery

BER#E
HKS'000
Tién

297,180
(159,076)

431
(20,976)

602,568
(239,612)

362,956

138,104 362,956
4,095 8,156

= 2,395 2,395
= (6,293) (6,499)
(€5)} (3.211) (4,048)

(17,508)
152 8,811

(29,835)
23,017

3,594

126,393

359,736

283,037
(156,644)

28,486
(23,700)

616,271
(256,535)

359,736
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Furniture,
landand  Construction Leasehold Plantand fixtures and Motor
buildings ~in progress improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
%8 B%
THRET HEIR BERE BEREE RERZRE RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL TAT FAL AL AL TER THL
31 December 2019 —E-RE
+ZA=t+-H
At 1 January 2019; RZE-NE-A-H:
Cost KA 197,881 68,286 19,014 321,710 23,407 7402 637,700
Accumulated depreciation ZiHTE (34,223) - (15,451) (163,481) (20,226) (5,760) (239,141)
Net carrying amount REFE 163,658 68,286 3,563 158,229 3,181 1,642 398,559
At 1 January 2019, net of RZE-NE-A-8-
accumulated depreciation BiREE 163,658 68,286 3,563 158,229 3,181 1,642 398,559
Additions NE - 823 568 1914 1,387 698 5390
Reclassification to assets NP BERELEL
held for sale (note 21) EEGENN (3,594) - - - - - (3,504)
Transfers 85 - (305) 305 - - - -
Transfer from deposits for BRARENE BER
purchases of property, plantand R &EEIRE
equipment - - - 4,306 - - 4,306
Disposals e - - - (4.924) (4) (29) (4,957)
Write-off i - - - (33 - (25 (58)
Depreciation provided during ERERE
the year (7,007) - (1,265) (17,852) (1157) (712) (27,993)
Exchange realignment B A% (3482) (1517) 1) (3,536) (72) (18) (8,697)
At 31 December 2019, net of WZE-NE+=A
accumulated depreciation =8 BARE
e 149,575 67,287 3,09 138,104 3335 1,55 362,95
At 31 December 2019: RZZ-NETZA
=1-A:
Cost R 186,821 67,287 19,472 297,180 24,311 7497 602,568
Accumulated depreciation 2:hE (37,246) - (16,373) (159,076) (20,976) (5,941) (239,612)
Net carrying amount REFE 149,575 67,287 3,099 138,104 3335 1,556 362,956
1 10 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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2019

Z—NF

HK$'000

TR

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BHEREE 25,850
Net gain from a fair value adjustment NEERERZFE (MiEe)

(note 6) 1,387

Exchange realignment P 5, R B (596)

Carrying amount at 31 December RTZHA=1+—HMEREE 26,641

The Group's investment properties consist of residential

properties and a commercial property in the PRC.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31
December 2020 based on valuations performed by Vincorn
Consulting and Appraisal Limited, an independent
professionally qualified valuer, at HK$28,933,000 (2019:
HK$26,641,000). Each year, the Group’s chief financial
officer decides, after approval from the directors, to
appoint which external valuer to be responsible for the
external valuations of the Group’s investment properties.
Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are
maintained. The Group’s chief financial officer has
discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions
and valuation results twice a year when the valuations are

performed for interim and annual financial reporting.

The investment properties consisting of a commercial
property and residential properties are leased to third
parties under operating leases, further summary details of
which are included in note 15 to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2020, an investment property of the
Group with a carrying amount of HK$6,678,000 (2019:
HK$6,473,000) was pledged to secure general banking

facilities granted to the Group (note 24).

AEENERENEEETENEENER B
B -

REBORENER T _TF+_A=+—
ElmfﬂaﬁjE%Aéiﬁfa{Eaﬂi,ﬁm’”;’@&ﬁ
HAERAFHNITZHEE28,933,0008 (==
— L5 © 26,641,000/ 70) EFHE - FFLEE
EMHLER - NEE IS AR TEINEGERA
L NEBEAEEREMENINDHEETIE -
BAERBEMSNE B2 BUMERESHTA
HEEL  c GEFEATPHRFEMIEHKE
HITHER - AEERBBESREEBRER R
HESTMEREGEMETR

B EHERYENEEMEAKNKREDER
KEBARTE=F  BEAMAEREHATE
WMERMEES -

R-ZE-TF+_A=+—H AEBEBEEE
/56,678,0008 (= Z— 4 : 6,473,000/57C)
2 EREMECMIFEARAEEER — KR
TERZER(HE24) -

BREEEZRAERAA
- ey N N
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Fair value hierarchy

14.

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group's investment properties:

REWE )

DFEER

TERUALREEREMENAFHEFEER

Fair value measurement using

ERUTBABENAFEE

Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
RERT S EXAER EATTHE
HE BWABE BWAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B-%) (B=%) (E=#) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TET THT
Recurring fair value RUTEERLE R
measurement for: NEEEHE
At 31 December 2020 =S
+=ZA=+—H”
Commercial property [ElikES 6,678 6,678
Residential properties EEME 22,255 22,255
28,933 28,933
At 31 December 2019 R-ZZE—NF
+-A=1+—8
Commercial property [ElikES - - 6,473 6,473
Residential properties EFEME - - 20,168 20,168
_ - 26,641 26,641

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2019: Nil).

1 1 2 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised

within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:
Commercial Residential
property properties
(kiR ES T=EPE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHBT
Carrying amount at 1 January 2019 RZZE-NF—A—BNEKREE 6,448 19,402
Net gain from a fair value adjustment RIEBERPERN AT EFHER S
recognised in profit or loss izl 170 1,217
Exchange realignment [ 5 S8 B (145) (451)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2019 RZZE—AF+_A=1+—8BxX
and 1 January 2020 —ETF-A-HEEE 6,473 20,168
Net gain/(loss) from a fair value adjustment P85 P HER R A FEFAEE
recognised in profit or loss Was,/ (E518) 558 (203) 743
Exchange realignment PE 5 % 408 1,344
Carrying amount at 31 December 2020 R-ZE-_ZEF+-_A=+—HH
FREE 6,678 22,255

REEEZERARAA
3% 2020
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Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and

DR EER(E)
UTREEMEGHEMANGEERTREER

the key inputs to the valuation of the investment AR E -
properties:
Significant
Investment properties Fair value Valuation unobservable
held by the Group hierarchy technique input Range
rEBREN BEATAHE
REWH* DNERERER fRE T WA BE Efs
Commercial property Level 3 Sales comparison Estimated price per RMB27,388 to
in Mainland China method square metre RMB30,847
(2019: RMB26,533 to
RMB32,855)
R B R 2 R Y% F=R HE LBV ¥R AR® 27,388 L
(CEIREL AR#30,847 70
(ZZT—h%F:
AE¥E26,533TF
AR¥32,8557T)
Residential properties Level 3 Sales comparison  Estimated price per RMB40,895 to
in Mainland China method square metre RMB44,706
(2019: RMB40,949 to
RMB45,227)
AR B R 2 (W% E=& HELLBUE B¥ K AR 40,895 LE
fhaHER ANE# 44,706 7T
—T-NEF
AR 40,949 L F
AR 45,227 7T)

A significant increase/(decrease) in the estimated price per
square metre in isolation would result in a significant
increase/(decrease) in the fair value of the investment
properties. The investment properties are valued using the
sales comparison method having regard to comparable
sales transactions as available in the relevant market. The
valuations take into account the characteristics of the
properties which include the location, size, floor level, year
of completion and other factors collectively.

1 1 4 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for certain properties and a
vehicle. Lump sum payments were made upfront to
acquire the leased land from the owners with lease periods
of 50 years, and no ongoing payments will be made under
the terms of these land leases. Leases of certain properties
generally have lease terms of 2 years. Generally, the Group
is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased
assets outside the Group.

REBMEREBEA

AEEFAETHERENHEHESN - —RKE
NRBESN FHEEANBRGEE L - B
506 - BERBRZELEERREARESX
HEMFRIR - FETYERENHERRBERM
Feo—RME  ARETERAREZIALE
ELOHEEEE -

(a) Right-of-use assets (a) EAEEE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use RERN > NEENERAEEEREENAR
assets and the movements during the year are as b=E (N
follows:
Leasehold Motor
land Properties vehicle Total
HELTH# L/ES RE =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT FET FHET
As at 1 January 2019 nZE—nF—H—H 4,840 2,911 117 7,868
Additions NE - 1,326 - 1,326
Derecognition BUBMER - (387) - (387)
Depreciation charge WERX (240) (1,691) (117) (2,048)
Exchange realignment I R TR (102) - - (102)
As at 31 December 2019 RZZE—hF
and 1 January 2020 +-A=+—HBHR
—E-TF—-H—H 4,498 2,159 - 6,657
Additions NE - 2,058 - 2,058
Depreciation charge WERY (237) (1,692) - (1,929)
Exchange realignment [E & R 277 - - 277
As at 31 December 2020 RZEZEF
+—A=+—H 4,538 2,525 - 7,063
BRESEEERERAA
F 3R 2020 1 1 5
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The Group as a lessee (continued) AEBEREBEA (E)
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEAEE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the RER - HEEBBENREERZFHNT :
movements during the year are as follows:
2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
FHET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—AMKREE 3,928
New leases EE 1,326
Derecognition BUB TR (401)
Accretion of interest recognised FREERT SN
during the year 131
Payments (NEN (2,794)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—H/EAE 2,190
Analysed into: LTSRN
Current portion BIEAER 7 1,623
Non-current portion JEBNERER 5 567
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in HEB BN TR BRI LIS
note 35 to the financial statements. B
() The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation () SHEENEREINSI|/OT :
to leases are as follows:
2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
FET
Interest on lease liabilities HEABMNE 131
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets A& E T &R 2,048
Total amount recognised in profit or loss Bz FER A ARRE 2,179
(d) The total cash outflow for leases and future cash (d) HEELRERLRE@ERRFABNEER

116

outflows relating to leases that have not yet
commenced are disclosed in note 29(b) to the
financial statements.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 14)
consisting of a commercial property and nine residential
properties in the PRC under operating lease arrangements.
The terms of the leases generally require the tenants to
pay security deposits. Rental income recognised by the
Group during the year was HK$539,000 (2019:
HK$312,000), details of which are included in note 5 to
the financial statements.

At 31 December 2020, the undiscounted lease payments
receivable by the Group in future periods under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

AEBEBHEA
AEERBEEHEZHRTBRHEHERREY
¥(fzx14)  BRE—EEADERNEEED
¥ ZSHEZ KR REXBEIMNRESR -
REBPRF AN ERE S YA & 539,000 T
(ZZ— L : 312,000 70) * BRAFBEHNE
TERRMIES o

N_B_BE+-_RA=+—0 FEEREEE
TP 2 N AR AC 2 18 B 1 R R B R Y R
MIREENRAT

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
FHBT

With one year —FR
After one year but within two years

—F A LERFAR

519
89

608

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
THTT

Unlisted equity investment, at fair value 3% QX F{EFIEMIFE T IRERE 4,159

The above equity investment was irrevocably designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income as the
Group considers the investment to be strategic in nature.

AR E T AT s IR T AR A T ER A
Hip2EW e - REEASERBIRE R R

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
FHET

Raw materials B
Work in progress pask-Thr
Finished goods B

20,194
10,612
21,122

51,928

REEEZERARAA
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2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
FHET

Trade receivables B 5 W GIE
Bills receivable it

197,743
22,260

Impairment RIE

220,003
(3,557)

216,446

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit, except for new customers, where payment in
advance may be required. The Group maintains a defined
credit policy and credit periods are usually granted ranging
from one to four months from the month-end of date of
invoice to customers. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables to minimise credit
risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact
that the Group’s trade and bills receivables related to a
large amount of diversified customers, there is no
significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its
trade and bills receivables. Trade and bills receivables are
non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date
and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

AEBEARPHNRZHRAEIBRBER - HEH
BEFRABABFIRI - REBEFAEEER
R BEATPRLBERAYE AAKET—
EMEAMEER - AEEABEHREREEER
HHBERREE  UBEREEERR - SRE
EEEREZANER  ER LSRR AEE
ZESRRFBANEBERERELZZ TIERP
B BAKBYBREREESRTRR - AEH
W EHLEE 5 B WA R EREEREERER
HmskEMEE SR - B S RYIGIAREK
RER/RTHE -

R|EHRR - EHRIGRBERBREERRIEER
A HRMGRERRERORER D ITEIIT

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
FHETT

Within one month —@BAR

One to two months —ZM1EA
Two to three months WZE=1E A
Over three months HBiE=1EA

84,425
54,338
47,349
30,334

216,446

1 1 8 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of BoRIWZENEREENEBEEESHT
trade and bills receivables are as follows: mr
2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
FHIT
At 1 January n—A—H 3,839
Impairment loss/(reversal of A EE (BERE
impairment loss), net (note 6) E518) ¥ (ffske) (211)
Amount written off as uncollectible i 88 A A R B B FRIR -
Exchange realignment ME 5, 28 71
At the end of year FR 3,557

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit
losses. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments with similar loss
patterns. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions. Generally, trade and bills
receivables are written off if past due for more than one

year and are not subject to enforcement activity.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk
exposure on the Group's trade and bills receivables using a

provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2020

AEBEREHE R RN AR EEEETRED
i AT EREMERER - BEEDERZEA
BFRUBBRANES D HANNERXHE
E o At BIDEARRBAXIELER - EBERH

BEARRRE ARG EBES

- E RN

RARFAE B IRETRRN S IE R BB B FEHR -
—RME - BHRWKIE M E R REE NSRS
—FETUAMEE - B NRREIIT TIERTRR -

TXEHINMAREEEFEAEEE F EUYK

AR EREEEHNEERRIER

R-ZB-ZBHF+-A=+—H

Expected credit loss rate ~ FEEREEE

B
Gross carrying amount BEREE
(HK$'000) (F#&T)
Expected credit losses EHEERRE
(HK$'000) (F#&1)

REKEEZRARARF
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As at 31 December 2019

R-ZZE-hF+=A=+—H

Past due
B
Credit-
Less than 1t03 3t0 12 impaired
Current 1 month months months  receivables Total
FERE
ey ARMEAR 1E3A 3F12A EGE CEl
Expected credit loss rate  FEHIEEE
BR 0.16% 0.19% 0.18% 1.19% 100% 1.62%
Gross carrying amount BERHE(E
(HK$'000) (F%7T) 187,902 24,916 3,325 673 3,187 220,003
Expected credit losses HEEEERE
(HK$'000) (FA71) 309 47 6 8 3,187 3,557
2019
—T-hNF
HK$'000
FHET
Current ENHA
Prepayments AT RIE 2,252
Deposits and other receivables 12 R E A W R 508
2,760
Non-current JEBNHA
Deposits "e 116

The financial assets included in the above balances relate
to receivables for which there was no history of default
and past due amounts. As at 31 December 2020 and
2019, the loss allowance was assessed to be minimal.

1 ZO Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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2019
—ET-NE
Notes HK$'000
Bt 5 FET
Cash and bank balances e RIRITEH 129,434
Pledged deposits and restricted cash 2 EIFFH LR HIR S 31,433
160,867
Less: Ve
Pledged time and bank deposits ETIRTTRE 2B A
for certain banking facilities FHNIRITIERR 24 (31,232)
Pledged bank deposits for certain & TR ZiE 2 2 K
bills payable RITFER 22 (201)
Cash and cash equivalents for the ~ FAREMBERAEZM S 2
purpose of the consolidated ReRReEEY
statement of financial position 129,434
At 31 December 2020, the cash and bank balances, and RZZEZZF+_A=+—8  REERARK
pledged deposits and restricted cash of the Group TAREBDFENE S RRITESHR KRB EIFT
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to PR ZBREIIE € A102,731,0008 L (ZF— 1
HK$102,731,000 (2019: HK$55,201,000). The RMB is not % :55,201,00087T) - ARBNSERERES
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under Ha B - WEARKR B A Hb 2 SN B 32 16451 A R
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations e EERNEEERTE  AEBREERE
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of MEREETIINEEB ZRITBARELIBA
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to HibEE o
exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on RITIR S RE BRITERF EHRBDUF B F £ F
daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances, pledged B iRITHER  BEERAFERRZRERSEEFN
deposits and restricted cash are deposited with E8 RAF R SR BRI A0 8RR 1T o
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
REKEERERAT
3§ 2020 121
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Yan Tat (HK) Industrial Limited (“YT Industrial”) is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liability. As at 31 December 2019, the
Group had been undergoing discussion with an
independent third party on the possible disposal of YT
Industrial. The possible disposal of YT Industrial was part of
a Framework Agreement (the “Framework Agreement”),
entered into between the Group and an independent third
party, in relation to the urban renewal project located at
the Group's factory in Pingshan District, Shenzhen, the
PRC. Based on the Framework Agreement, the possible
disposal of YT Industrial was expected to be completed
within one year from 31 December 2019. Accordingly, the
assets and liabilities of YT Industrial were reclassified as
held-for-sale as at 31 December 2019. For details, please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated 13 November
2019.

The major classes of assets and liabilities classified as held
for sale as at 31 December 2019 were as follows:

ARRN—H2ENBARRE(EE)BEXR
RAR(TREEX)ZREBEMAINBRA
Ale RZBE-NE+TA=+—H &EE—-H
H—FBUE =R EREEXETH
e AR EREERBN —BERRGZ(1E
Ripag ) ) — 800+ % fhp ek R AN 52 [ B — 4
M E = ARBLR BRI L E &R
ZMEEFHIAEBMATL o RIBER B% - TRHIA]
RE-ET-NFT-_A=T—HEFNH—FR
TROEREEX - At R-F—-NF+—H
=t—B BEEEZEERBBEEHORLR
EHE - HEF2H AR/ -ZE-NF
T—AT=AmMR% .

RZE-NFE+Z_A=+—B2ERKELE
MEBREERBESERWT

Note
B 5T

Property, plant and equipment

ME - BB MEE

13

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FE{ (I8 - &4 & H i fE U 08

Cash and cash equivalents

RekBRTEHFED

Total assets classified as held for sale

DEBRIEHENREE

Other payables and accruals

Ho At JE A 08 N FE R B

Total liabilities classified as held for sale

R EH E R

BRE

Net assets BEFE

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Framework
Agreement expired. On 8 May 2020, the Group entered
into, amongst others, a cooperation agreement (the
“Cooperation Agreement”) with independent third parties
for the urban renewal project located at the production area
in Pingshan District, Shenzhen, the PRC. According to the
Cooperation Agreement, the possible disposal of YT
Industrial was expected not to be completed within one year
from 31 December 2020. Accordingly, the assets and
liabilities of YT Industrial ceased to be classified as held-for-
sale and were reclassified back to the respective assets and
liabilities categories during the year ended 31 December
2020.

The Cooperation Agreement and the transactions
thereunder have been approved by the shareholders of the
Company at the extraordinary general meeting on 14 July
2020. For details, please refer to the Company’s
announcements dated 15 May 2020 and 14 July 2020,
and the circular dated 24 June 2020.

1 22 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020

HE_Z-_ZTF+-_A=+—BILFE ' EEH
#OER - -M-Z-TFAANE  AEEEF
ME=RIZ(EREIE) BN ERYIF
WiR e RN HERIEB NS EGR(EE
Whakl) - RIEBEA RS BRI LEREERR
KrEreE T2 -_TF+ - A=+ B
FRTHK - Bl HE_Z_FTF+_A=+—
RIEFE  BEEXNEENABEIEYERR
fEHE - YEBHDBLEREELBERA -

AAFIRECN -—ZE-FTF+ [+ EETH
MEEREFRI RS EHEA B R T T T
MR 5 - BEFE  S2EARFBHAZTZ
TFERATRAR-_ZE-_ZEF+A+HAEANHA
S UNHBA S -_EFA-TINHNE
B o
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2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
FET

Trade payables =) ANE
Bills payable ENEE

109,291
201

109,492

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is

RIERR - EHRNRBERENREREER
B RE DT EIIT

as follows:
2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
FETT
Within three months =@AN 93,403
Three to six months =Z=XEA 14,929
Over six months HBiE7NE A 1,160
109,492

The trade payables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing
and are normally settled within three months from the
month-end of the date of invoice.

At 31 December 2019, bills payable with an aggregate
carrying amount of HK$201,000 were secured by pledged
bank deposits of HK$201,000.

BHRNFAREER - T8 BENERA
HAB AR =EA NGB -

R-E—-NF+-_F=+—8 EFHEES
201,000 oW FE{S =45 2 B3 201,000 T E
IR TR ©

REEEZERARAA
h Xﬁiﬁ zgzo 1 23
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2019
—ET-hF
HK$'000
FET
Current BN HA

Other payables H e RUR 22,175
Accruals fETE 41,427
Deferred income” MEFE A 1,618
65,220

Non-current JEBNER
Deposit received* Bz e * -
Deferred income” PFEIEB AN 12,086
12,086

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an
average term of three months.

A

124

Deferred income mainly represented (i) special fund of
HK$3,949,000 (2019: HK$4,069,000) granted by a PRC government
authority in relation to the construction of a sewage treatment
facility; (ii) a special fund of HK$265,000 (2019: HK$265,000)
granted by a PRC government authority in relation to the Group’s
purchase of certain energy saving and sewage treatment machines.
The deferred income is recognised in profit or loss over the expected
useful lives of the relevant property, plant and equipment; and (iii) a
special fund of HK$2,838,000 (2019: HK$3,030,000) granted by a
PRC government authority in relation to the Group’s purchase of
certain machines for technology advancement.

As at 31 December 2020, deposit received represents the initial
deposit received in relation to cooperation for an urban renewal
project located at the production area in Pingshan District,
Shenzhen, the PRC. Further details are set out in note 21 to the
financial statements.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020

HEENFBRATTRE  FHHRA=MEA -

BEWAERE : () PRBITE BRERSKER RN
¥ 2 Bk R4 3,949,000 7T ( — T — L4 + 4,069,000
FIT) ¢ (i) R B BT S P B A SR MR B S T AR AR 50K
BRIDHEER IR T 2 B R E £ 2650008 T ( — T — hE -
265,000 7T) - ZBIEEW AL B @Y - BE K&
B 2 TEHA R (5 A AR H B R AR ¢ R (i) AP B BT BB P
RAEERELETHERAOBER T ZHHKES
2,838,000 7t (ZZ — L4 : 3,030,000/ 7T) ©

ToEFT A=+ —H - BRRSERUNFE
RYIEF L R f T B HTIR B S YRR B R
£ - BEZHBHRRYHREMFE21 -
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24. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 24, FFEBITHEN
2020 2019
ot St 4:4 ZE-nE
Contractual Contractual
interest interest
rate (p.a.) Maturity?  HK$'000 rate (p.a) Maturity® HK$'000
CLETIES H8A? T ELIETI 5ER? TARL
Current 15§
Secured trust receipt loans due for repayment N/A LIBOR" +1.4% t0 1.5% 2020 35,656
within one year® or HBOR® + 1.4% 10 1.5%
BR-FNERMARRETIEERS FER i UBOR'+14%1015%  —E-T&
3 HBOR? + 1.4% to 15%
Secured bank loans due for repayment within one LIBOR' + 2.5% or LIBOR' +2.5% or 2020 19,861
year which contain repayment on HIBOR® +2% HIBOR® + 2%
demand clauses®
ER-FNERMAEARTER LIBOR! + 2.5% 3 LBOR'+25%%  —Z=%F
(BERERERAER) HIBOR® + 2% HIBOR? + 2%
Secured bank loans due for repayment after one N/A LIBOR' +2.5% or 2020-2021 5,554
year which contain repayment HIBOR® + 2%
on demand clauses®
BRN-ERERNFERRITER TER i LBOR' +25%% —E-BEZ
(BERERERAER) HBOR +2%  —F=—F
Secured bank loans due for repayment within PBC BLR* + 1.02% 2020 23,165

one year®

BR-FREENAERRTERS PBCBLR +1.02%  —E-%%

Total 4 84,236
! London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR") ! fREERTTRI S (TUBORJ)

Based on the scheduled repayment dates as set out in the loan ? HREX B RITRE S ETERIETERE 8

agreement/bank facilities letter
3 Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR") 3 HERITRIZESR LS (THBOR])
4 People’s Bank of China benchmark lending rate (“PBC BLR") 4 PEARRITEEEER % ([PBC BLR))
5 Denominated in HK$ or US$ B AT ETSIE
6 Denominated in RMB 6 AAREETE

RESEERERAT
F# 2020 1 Z 5
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Certain of the Group’s bank loan agreements contain
repayment on demand clauses and the corresponding
bank loans have been classified as current liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Ignoring the
effect of any repayment on demand clauses and based on
the maturity terms of these loans, the interest-bearing
bank borrowings of the Group are repayable:

$%I++3Ffﬁﬁf§\?xﬁ% AW ARERME aﬂmA
MAARRITERCREEMBIRARDBRR

HafE- ﬁTﬁ&&ﬁ&%fﬂ,ﬂﬁﬂ%sz%ﬁ“
RIBZEEFNE MR - AEE 25 BRITHE

hoE

AR TRER -

2019
—E-NEF
HK$'000
FET
Within one year —FR 78,682
In the second year FE_F 5,554
In the third to fifth years, inclusive % —EERF (BREERRT) -
84,236

Notes: MIsE -

(a) Certain amount of the Group’s bank borrowings are secured by (i)
the Group's investment property with a carrying amount of
HK$6,678,000 (2019: HK$6,473,000) (note 14); and (i) pledged
deposits with banks amounting to HK$31,820,000 (2019:
HK$31,232,000) (note 20).

(b) Included in the bank borrowings as at 31 December 2020 were
borrowings with carrying amounts of HK$4,680,000 which were
denominated in US$. All other bank borrowings were denominated
in HK$.

Included in the bank borrowings as at 31 December 2019 were
borrowings with carrying amounts of HK$23,165,000 and
HK$56,188,000 which were denominated in RMB and USS$,
respectively. All other bank borrowings were denominated in HK$.

(c) At 31 December 2020, interest rates of the bank borrowings were
either fixed or floating and determined with reference to rates such
as Hong Kong/London Interbank Offered Rate and People’s Bank of
China benchmark lending rate. The interest rates of the Group’s
bank borrowings at 31 December 2020 ranged from 2.67% to
3.20% (2019: from 3.30% to 5.22%) per annum.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020

(a)

(b)

(©

REEE TIRITER SR A EBRE(E 46,678,000
BT (ZZ—NF + 6,473,000/87T) (MIFE14) IREY
¥ RGNBEHEWT FHRITHFH31,820,0008T(=F
—AUEF © 31,232,000 7T) (Bt 55 20) fEHEHE -

RZZF-FTF+A=+—H RITERELEEDER
4,680,000/8 LA fE R (VASETTAHE) © FTE EMIRTTE
FIILABTTAHE -

RZF-NF+ZA=+—ANRITERRIERDER
231650002%7@256188000/f§7ca’11af£< A RIAAR
K RETTRHME) « A M RITE I AETAHE -

RZZZTFE+-A=+—0  RITEFIREESZE
ik CHMERDNZREES/ RBRTAZEFRERFE
/\Eﬂiﬁ%;ﬂﬁ%ﬁi#m RZZEZZTF+=A
=t+—B AEERTERNDEFNENT267% %
3.20% (ZZ— N4 :3.30% £5.22%) °
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The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during FEEHEEENEENFANESHIT

the year are as follows:
Deferred tax liabilities EEBIEEE

Depreciation

allowances
in excess of
related Revaluation Withholding
depreciation of properties taxes Total
ERERB
BRAWE ENELY/E S B wmEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FABT FABT FAT FAT
At 1 January 2019 R-ZE—NHF
—H—H (123) (6,673) (13,753) (20,549)
Deferred tax credited/ RERNRIEBEEETA

(charged) to profit or (308 B R EFS T8

loss during the year (FF5E10)

(note 10) 79 (728) (1,962) (2,611)
Exchange realignment b H PR - 162 - 162
At 31 December 2019 R-ZT—NEF

and 1 January 2020 +=—A=+—H8kK

—ETF
—H—H (44) (7,239) (15,715) (22,998)
Deferred tax credited/ RERNRIBRET A

(charged) to profit or (308 B EERS T8

loss during the year (FF5E10)

(note 10) 17 (421) (2,828) (3,232)
Released upon distribution R 9 RA% 212 2 %

of dividend - - 4,685 4,685
Exchange realignment M 5 F%E - (491) (15) (506)
At 31 December 2020 R _TF

+=-A=+—H (27) (8,151) (13,873) (22,051)
REKEERERAT
F$; 2020 1 2 7
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Deferred tax assets BEEMIEEE
Depreciation  Provision for Losses
Provision in excess inventories available Other
for accrued of related and trade  for offsetting deductible
staff welfare  depreciation and bills  against future temporary
costs allowance receivables taxable profits differences Total
FERES UHEHAR
RIBIRN FMERBR EysER  EREER  EtTHNE
RABE RERE BURREERE B8 BRER @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEx TR TR FiEx TR TR
At 1 January 2019 wZE-NE-A-A 2,248 4,224 1,753 550 2,931 11,706
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to ~ MERREZET A/ (3188

profit or loss during the year EERE (F3210)

(note 10) 331 (1,977) (147) (550) 16 (2,327)
Exchange realignment B AR (56) (56) (36) - (65) (213)
At 31 December 2019 and R=Z-NE+-A=1—H

1 January 2020 h=5-2%-f-H 2,523 2,191 1,570 - 2,882 9,166
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to ~ RERRIBZET A/ (F18) ¢

profit or loss during the year EIERE (FE10)

(note 10) 4 216 (155) - 45 110
Exchange realignment L 163 154 94 - 188 599
At 31 December 2020 WZEZTE+ZA=1—H 2,690 2,561 1,509 - 3,115 9,875

At 31 December 2020, the Group had tax losses arising in
Hong Kong of HK$5,449,000 (2019: HK$5,348,000) that
are available indefinitely for offsetting against future
taxable profits of a subsidiary in Hong Kong in which the
losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of the tax losses as they have arisen in a
subsidiary that have been loss-making for some time and it
is currently not considered probable that taxable profits
will be available against which the tax losses can be

utilised.

Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020

R-ZE-EF+_A=+—H AEBFREEF
W 7 T B 5 185,449,000 T(Z&E — W F -
5,348,000 7T) - Al AR B AR EH SEE £ SR
REEHIB AR 2 RRERBAEF o MARREZE
HESERRECHREEE  RAAEBEHREE
BHREERE BNHESBEERBITHE
BIAAE A A B ARIBEEKE 2 ERTE
FzHIBAR -
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Deferred tax assets (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group,
the applicable rate is 5%. The Group is therefore liable to
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

EEHBEE (8)

REBEHBEREMAETE - R BRI ESNE
BRECLERBIREETRKEEK AWK
10% BB - WRER_FTENEF-—A—HE
AR WERR-ETLF+ A=+ REKN
B - WP BEREEGIMREENEEERTE
B - BRSO TR R - BAR
AREBORER5% - At ZFRF BEAMAK
YHMB AR —_EENEF A —HRELR
BN DRI B - REBBGMIEND o

AR RIAEB R BB I\ SIS HRIER o

Shares gl 2019
—E-hEF
HK$'000
FHT
Authorised: ERE ¢
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 10,000,000,000 f% &% 0.01 7B 7T
HK$0.01 each EOR=R LS 100,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITRERE
240,000,000 ordinary shares of 240,000,000 B &% 0.01 7T
HK$0.01 each R Rl 2,400
There was no movement in the Company’s share capital FRN - ANARBARESS -
during the year.
BRESEEERERAA
352020 129
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The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme"”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. The Scheme became
effective on 18 November 2014 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for ten years
from that date.

Any grant of share options to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company or any of their
respective associates, is required to be approved by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any grant
of share options to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company or
any of their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an
aggregate value (based on the closing price of the
Company'’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5
million, within any 12-month period, is subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within the date as specified in the offer letter issued by the
Company, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of any
option granted under the Scheme is determined by the
board of directors in its absolute discretion, save that no
option may be exercised more than ten years after it has
been granted.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
board of directors at its absolute discretion, but may not be
less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of grant; (ii) the average of the closing
prices of the Company’s shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the shares on the date of grant.

1 30 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
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ARERLERAET B ([T 8 ) LA AR &
BEBIEHERNABRSEERMER N T
B ZAat 8RN —E—mE+— A+ N \RER - &K
R AEHHIERT BRI BZ BB TFR%
FAM -

AARRIESE  TETHABHETERR - RME
MRECHEATRLERNBRERESEL
SEMTTE MR - TREE © o I
TZEAHRE - MAREEERRIBLIEANT
B MEARSEAZIHBEATROINEMARE
PAEEE B AR A RHERR E 2 EITRME0.1% -
FAFE(RBEARRR RO H R BE R HE)
BESABETANRRASESBIRMELL
o TREE -

BRI ERTmARAREATBE Y
B4 WPEFTFIA 2 B PSR BT B
(B - RIS 81 L i (TR 017 12
HREERMBET | EAIREBRENEL E
T4 -

BREZTEEHETERBETE - BTERER
TH&REE - ()ARBROAE L BB W
B: (AR RBROREZRL BT AESE
B2 FHRTIE RO RRH Bz mE -
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Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

Further details of the Company’s share option scheme are
set out in the Report of the Directors.

No share options were granted during the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019 and no share options under the
Scheme were outstanding as at 31 December 2020 and
2019.

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 66
and 67 of the financial statements.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the capital contribution from
Mr. Chan Wing Yin and Mrs. Chan Yung by way of a
waiver of shareholders’ loan and the difference between
the consideration and the carrying amount of the non-
controlling interest acquired.

(@) Changes in liabilities arising from financing

BREMER TRHEARRKSINERAS
EREZHER -

AARIBREFEIZESHBFEANREETE®RSE ©

BE_Z-_ZFR-_FT-NF+-A=+—H
IEFE  BERHEAERE MR- _=F
F—E-NE+-A=1+—8  ZtETHER
PR HEE 1 R AT o

RAFERENFE  AEBRBESEIEES
TI2PREBIREFE 66 k67 ENRAERZ D)
%o

BEXRf#E
BAREBERAEAERRBELIBBHRRK
REFETHTE LB AT IE R
HREEZEHER -

() MEEZDHELENABERH

activities
2020 —E-BF
At 1 January 2020 RZZEZTF—-H—H
Changes from financing cash flows B&IR & EEE)
New leases g
Interest expense FERZ
Interest paid included in BRELERSRNEMNTIE
operating cash flows
Foreign exchange movement SN A &)
At 31 December 2020 R-E-FF+—-HA=+—H
REKEERERAT
3R 2020 131
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(@) Changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities (continued)

(a) RMEFHELNEEEH (H)

2019 —T-NEF
Interest-
bearing bank Lease
borrowings liabilities
FTRIRITRER HEBE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAET
At 1 January 2019 RZE—-—hE—H—H 178,539 3,928
Changes from financing cash flows F&ER&REH (93,639) (2,663)
New leases EE - 1,326
Interest expense BRI - 131
Interest paid classified as SEAKERSRNENFE
operating cash flows - (131)
Derecognition BUBTER - (401)
Foreign exchange movement YN BEE (664) -
At 31 December 2019 R-TE-NF+-_A=+—H 84,236 2,190

(b) Total cash outflow for leases
The total cash outflow for leases included in the
statement of cash flows is as follows:

(b) HEARESRH
HERRSREFARSREROT

2019
—ZE-NF
HK$'000
FET

S VEEIY
BERHN

Within operating activities
Within financing activities

131
2,663

2,794

(c) Major non-cash transactions
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions
to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
HK$2,058,000 (2019: HK$1,326,000) and
HK$2,058,000 (2019: HK$1,326,000), respectively,
in respect of lease arrangements for certain
properties.

1 32 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2020

(0 EXRFEBERS
RER AEERE TUENTELTHS
FAREERMEABNIFRESAED T
732,058,000 (= — N4 : 1,326,000
77t ) &2,058,0008 t( =& — L F -
1,326,000/ 7T) °
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Details of the Group'’s bills payable and bank borrowings,
which are secured by certain assets of the Group, are
included in note 22 and note 24, respectively, to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group had the following capital commitments at the
end of the reporting period:

EBRASERNEERBRITER(UAERSRT
BEEERE) NFE  EPRHAGEVBRE
Bt 22 &BsE24 -

RIMERR - AEEBHUTEARAE

2019
—T-NF
HK$'000
FHET
Contracted, but not provided for: EEENEES:T -
Construction and purchases of items ERRBEYE BEX
of property, plant and equipment REIEE 2,134

(a) In addition to the transactions, arrangements and
balances detailed elsewhere in these financial

(a) BHEMBERIREMIFIFLANZS - &
BERAEERSN - AR BN E RN RRER 7T

statements, the Group had the following transactions T3S ¢
with a related party during the year:
2019
—T-NF
Note HK$'000
B =x THETT
A related company: Eak NI
Lease liabilities paid EfNHEEaE (i) 1,776
Note: B 5E

(i) During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the
rentals were charged by Yantek Electronics Company Limited
(“Yantek"), a related company of the Group, owned as to
33% by Mr. Chan Yan Kwong and 34% by Mr. Chan Yan
Wing, who are the directors of the Company, and 33% by
Ms. Chan Yan Sam, the sister of Mr. Chan Yan Kwong and
Mr. Chan Yan Wing, in accordance with the tenancy
agreements entered into between the Group and Yantek.

Interest on lease liabilities of HK$157,000 (2019:
HK$111,000) and depreciation of right-of-use assets of
HK$1,691,000 (2019: HK$1,691,000) were recognised
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

(i) BE-_T-_ZTFER-_ZT—NEFE+=-_A=+—8
IHFE - BEETFARAA([BE]) (REEK
AT BB AE BREBKEE (BEA
AARESR) RRBNZ T (FREXLEERKRE
K e RIBEER) 5 B 33% - 34% K 33% 1E
5 IR AN S B 8 B 1B T 3 A0 A & 1 R AR
% -

HE-Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HILEFE O
RAEEEHE157,0008T(ZF—NF:
111,000 7T) K it FA 4 & 2 7 & 1,691,000 7%
JL(ZZ— % :1,691,000/87T) °

REEEZERARAA
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(b) Other transaction with a related party (b) EERAEEAETHEMRS
A director of the Company received a sales FR - AR —BEZARASEHREHRR
commission of HK$3,129,000 (2019: HK$4,486,000) BMESHEEMEE3,129,0008 (=%
for his services provided to the Group during the — L : 4,486,0008 7T) © & IIRIER
year based on 3%-12% (2019: 3%-12%) of the P EH3%-12%(ZF — N F 3%
transaction amounts. 12%) 5 E °
() Compensation of key management () ZTEETXTEEBEAENHME:
personnel of the Group:
2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
FAT
Short term employee benefits EHEERA 14,231
Post-employment benefits BBk 1= T 54
Total compensation paid to key ENEEEEREAERN
management personnel HERE 14,285
Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’s EERTETHRAEHMOE —TFEH
emoluments are included in note 8 to the RERE MG mKRMFES -
consolidated financial statements.
(d) Particulars of the amount due to a related company (d) FEFEBARZEFBENT
are as follows:
2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
FHET
Lease liabilities due to a related company JEfT A REE A & 2,190
The related party transaction in respect of note 32(a)(i) 3l B FE32(a)) 2 BB 5 A2 5 TR AL LT AR Al

above also constitutes a continuing connected transaction BUABRTEZHEHERZS -
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as

ERERMTANREARNREEHINOT

follows:
2019
—ZE-NEF
HK$'000
FHET
Financial assets BMgERE
Financial assets at amortised cost: REEN AT ENTBEE -
Trade and bills receivables B Z NI R EREE 216,446
Financial assets included in FPATERRIA © e RHEAM
prepayments, deposits FEWRIEM B 15 B B
and other receivables 624
Pledged deposits and restricted cash EERERRZREIRE 31,433
Cash and cash equivalents RERBSEEY 129,434
377,937
Financial asset at fair value through AV EFAEMZEKE
other comprehensive income: TS A EE -
Equity instrument designated at EERATESAEMEE
fair value through other Wi T A
comprehensive income 4,159
382,096
Financial liabilities BgaE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: R AP BRM B IS A fE
Trade and bills payables B S ENFIARENRE 109,492
Financial liabilities included in other STAHMENFKIERETER
payables and accruals W aE 31,949
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTEIRITIE K 84,236
Lease liabilities HEBE 2,190
227,867

REKBEEZERAERAA

F3R 2020

135



Notes to Financial Statements

B RS R MY AL

37 December 2020 —ZE-—FF+—-A=+—H

AEESRTANKRERAFECGREERL
RNFEAEMAENSRTARINEHINT

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s
financial instruments, other than those with carrying
amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are as

follows:
Carrying amounts Fair values
IREE AFE
2019 2019
—E-NF —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FE&T
Financial asset MKEE
Financial asset at fair value A FEZHA
through other Hith 2 E
comprehensive income MBS & 4,159 4,159
Financial liabilities BMEaE
Interest-bearing bank AT ERITER
borrowings 84,236 84,801

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, pledged deposits and restricted cash,
trade and bills receivables, trade and bills payables,
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, and financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments or the effect of discounting is not material.

The Group’s chief financial officer is responsible for
determining the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. At each reporting
date, the chief financial officer analyses the movements in
the values of financial instruments and determines the
major inputs applied in the valuation. The directors review
the results of the fair value measurement of financial
instruments for annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:
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AEBEPKREAERTEM T AR FEFE
MR RIERF - REREAH - PHEES TS
BTANEBESY IEEHEMANIZHA
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The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-
bearing bank borrowings have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using discount
rates that reflect the Group’s borrowing rates as at the end
of the reporting period. The change in fair value as a result
of the Group’s own non-performance risk for interest-
bearing bank borrowings as at the end of the reporting
period was assessed to be insignificant.

For the fair value of the unlisted equity investment,
management of the Group has estimated the fair value of
the investment using an asset-based approach as its major
asset is a property held for self-use and the investee is yet
to have sufficient earnings history to support the use of
other approaches. The value of this property is adjusted to
its fair value at the end of each reporting period for the
purpose of determining the Group’s share of adjusted net
asset value and fair value of the investment.

Fair value hierarchy
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

SRR IS 9 A T EIE EIE -
o DA B 9t 7 95 B34 9 45 R O 18 R M0 B TR
EBEMAARLNE - I AEE S R0
S RBE BRI EROTEOAR TER
ATERBETEATEK -

AIFLETRERENAFE  FAEEEEREEDE
REEMEZEGBFRENAFE BXBEER
—EFEERANENARREHRERERD
BEMRREAIFEABEAMITDE - ZMENEBED
HEENREERSMRZATE  NEEAEHE
EILEHBEEEFERREATE

DNFEER
TRINTAEE SR TANRNFEASER

Asset measured at BRAFETE
fair value: HEE :
At 31 December 2020 R-T-TF
+=-—A=1+—H
Financial asset at fair value I&ZAF(EET A
through other Hib 2 EIE
comprehensive income KBTS & E
At 31 December 2019 N_E—NF
+=—A=+—8H

Financial asset at fair value 1% F(EEH A

through other HarmEkas
comprehensive income BB & E - 4,159 4,159
REKEERERAT
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Fair value hierarchy (continued)

A significant increase/(decrease) in the fair value of the
investee’s investment property would result in a significant
increase/(decrease) in the fair value of the unlisted equity

investment.

The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3

during the year are as follows:

AFEBR ()
ERBREHRNEBEEME L ATENKNIREE
/O )@%ﬁ%imﬂxﬁfhﬁz NS EVN
g3, CRi

RERNE=FNOAFEAEEZBOT :

2019
—ET-NEF
HK$'000
T
Financial asset at fair value through BEAFERAEMER
other comprehensive income W% EE
— unlisted: o
At 1 January 4,119
Fair value gains/(loss) recognised in Bf\ﬁﬂﬂzﬁﬂﬂlm R
other comprehensive income ifﬁﬂﬂl =,/ (&518) 133
Exchange realignment (93)
At the end of year 4,159

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at
fair value as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December

2019.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for financial assets (2019:

Nil).
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34. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 3. ERIANDAFERATFERRE)

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

DFEER(E)

Fair value measurement using

ERUATEABENATENE

Quoted
prices

in active
markets
ERBRHE
HE
(Level 1)
(EB—%%)
HK$°000
FH&xT

Liabilities for which fair HEAFENEE :
values are disclosed:

Significant
observable
inputs
BERAHE
LN ¢
(Level 2)
(B=4)
HK$°000
F#ET

Significant
unobservable
inputs
BERTAEHE
W ABE
(Level 3)
(B=8)
HK$’'000
FET

HK$'000
FH

At 31 December 2020 RZE-ZF
+=—A=+—H
Interest-bearing bank sHEIRITIER
borrowings
At 31 December 2019 RIZ—hF
+-—A=+—8
Interest-bearing bank FTEIRITIER
borrowings - - 84,801 84,801
REKBERARAA
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The Group’s principal financial instruments arise directly
from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and
they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of
changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the
Group's cash and time deposits at banks and borrowings
with floating interest rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group's profit before tax
(through the impact on deposits with banks and floating
rate borrowings). There is no impact on the Group’s equity
except on the retained profits.

AEBETZEMTAERRNELE -

ﬂi‘il/fﬁﬁlﬂﬁiﬂﬁ}%ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬂ“hﬂ * S
KRR FERREADESRR ZEFSEH
KA ZlSE@EEEE%IEEZ%ELEﬁE’UBZ% M E
BERHRa T

FEEB
MERESEeHIANRKRRSREHZET
%ﬂTE& RBNE R o AN BEERTIS R
""""" PR FERANEENRITR S REBFER
MEBIERER -

TNRINRAEB B ADEN (FRITFREE R
ERNFE)HMEHIR SR e F & (K fhf
BREIHFTE )E’JJSZ”?F; o BRIRE AN - A
SERSHMESTE

2020 —EB-EF
HK$ BT
RMB AR
HK$ /%TE
RMB AR
2019 —EB—hEF
HK$ BT 50 153
RMB AR 50 233
HK$ BT (50) (153)
RMB AR (50) (233)
Idi imited
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Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Those
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating units
in currencies other than the units’ functional currencies.
The Group’s main operating subsidiaries are located in
Hong Kong and Mainland China and the Group's sales and
purchases were mainly conducted in HK$, RMB and US$.

The RMB is not a freely convertible currency. Future
exchange rates of the RMB could vary significantly from
the current or historical exchange rates as a result of the
changes in the PRC foreign currency policy. The exchange
rates may also be affected by economic developments and
political changes domestically and internationally, and the
demand and supply of the RMB. The appreciation or
devaluation of RMB against HK$ and US$ may have an
impact on the operating results of the Group.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end
of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in
the RMB exchange rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due to changes
in the fair values of monetary assets and liabilities). There is
no impact on the Group’s equity except on the retained
profits.

NS EBR
AEEERRSSERR - ZERRRERGEE
RTLASR AT M0 B S DASN O ISR T B B - A
EENEBHERBA RN E SR A BN
MARBNEEXBEUET ARBRETE
7

ARBAIEA R HMERE - ARBEERIKERRA]
BEE A B SMNEBUR B B)if 62 B AT SR EE X
BRAHA o R IR 58 5 BRSNS 7 38 R S I
SRBBURARBNERAZE - ARENET
RETHERRESSHARE 2 REXEE
PRFE

TRITRREMRAEBRBANGN (HEH
BERABATENES) HARBEXHRE
EREEE (M BEBERTE)NBRE -
BROREEMIN  AREREMEITE -

2020 —ECERE
If HK$ weakens against RMB BT H ARE T
If HK$ strengthens against RMB BT AR EFA
If US$ weakens against RMB iMZETT 7 ARE T
If US$ strengthens against RMB WETHARE LA
2019 —E-NF
If HK$ weakens against RMB BT ARE T 5 (6)
If HK$ strengthens against RMB BT AREE EF (5) 6
If US$ weakens against RMB METHARE T 5 (1,029)
If US$ strengthens against RMB HETHARE EF (5) 1,029
RESEERBERAAE
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 35. BIXEREEEEREBEE (&)
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk EERE

Maximum exposure and year-end staging BERBRFERER

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum TREFNTZA=+T—0  ERFKEEER
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, KNEEEENAGRNGESER (EEERNBE
which is mainly based on past due information unless FEER - RIFFEMBBIEB TV ERARLRE
other information is available without undue cost or effort, TR RBER) RERBESE - 2VHLEAR
and year-end staging classification as at 31 December. The IS EEMIREAE -

amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial

assets.

At 31 December 2020 R-ZB-ZEF+=-A=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs

2HRMEEER

Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3  approach Total
PEER1 PEER 2 PEER3 K[43 At
HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TERT FTERT TERT TET

Trade receivables* g 5 e R * = = 198,600 198,600
Bills receivable FEW &

— Not yet past due — X 38,929 38,929
Financial assets included in FTATERFOE - e

prepayments, deposits and R H At MR IR )

other receivables BsEE

— Normal** — IEHE**
Pledged deposits and BEAERR

restricted cash ZIRHIR®

— Not yet past due — K@ Hp 31,820 31,820
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEEY

— Not yet past due — KREH 244,688 244,688

315,899 198,600 514,499
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Credit risk (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

At 31 December 2019

EEREE(E)
REABRFERER(E)

R-ZE-NAFE+ZA=1t—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A
TaHp
=EE1E > HEEEEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
FEER1 P ER 2 FEER 3 k197 HET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Trade receivables* =Y AVERER - - - 197,743 197,743
Bills receivable e E &
— Not yet past due — K Hf 22,260 - - - 22,260
Financial assets included in FTAERFE - e
prepayments, deposits and R B UFRIE /Y
other receivables HBEE
— Normal** — EF** 624 - - - 624
Pledged deposits and BEBERR
restricted cash ZRRHH
— Not yet past due — R 31,433 - - - 31,433
Cash and cash equivalents RekEEED
— Not yet past due — K@ H 129,434 - - - 129,434
183,751 - - 197,743 381,494

For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix
is disclosed in note 18 to the financial statements.

*x The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables is considered to be “normal” when
they are not past due and there is no information indicating that the
financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is
considered to be “doubtful”.

* AR ERAMOAMERENE ZRKHET 5 - B
Ty BB SRR ok 18 AT B ER O BB AR -

o HEF ATRNFOR ~ o R H Al EUGRIAR B 75 & 3R
B AMEENBETZENBEAENEERR B MHTE
RAREEEE I AR EEEEWREIER] - TR
ZENBEENEEERRREFRE] -

REEEZERARAA
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Credit risk (continued)

The credit risk of the Group’s financial assets, which
comprise trade and bills receivables, pledged deposits and
restricted cash, cash and cash equivalents, and financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, arises from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments.

Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/
counterparty. At the end of the reporting period, the
Group had certain concentrations of credit risk as 52.9%
(2019: 48.4%) and 73.0% (2019: 69.7%) of the Group's
trade and bills receivables were due from the Group's
largest customer and five largest customers, respectively.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank borrowings. The Group’s policies are to regularly
monitor the current and expected liquidity requirements,
and to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and available banking facilities to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

EERbE (&)
AEBEMBEEE(BRESREFEBEREBKRE
B BEERAEREZRFRE R RkRSEFE
Y EFIAFENFIA - e A BRI 2 8175
BE)NEERBRNREF RN  sARRRE
EERZETEMREAE -

BEE/HFHEEEEETRRK - RBREH
K AEEEETEEETRAKR  AALASERE
WE SRR EREREEF  5515E52.9%
(ZZ—NF :484%) ®k73.0% (=T —NF:
69.7%) EWAEBHZRANAAREF ©

AEENBBERMNARITERERFESNFE
MEEER M2 T - ARBENBRAERERS
BERFERRSHES TR  UBREERTZHES
FHERATAERTHE R EHARRAREE

AEBRFEMRRIEA QO RBERN RO
BEIEMRIT

2020 —ECEF

B HRNTIERENRE

Financial liabilities included in AR ENTIERESER
other payables and accruals R EE

Interest-bearing bank borrowings st ERITE

Trade and bills payables

Lease liabilities HEaE
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Liquidity risk (continued)

REBESEE (&)

On Less than 1t05
demand 1 year years Total
RERER IR-F  —ELF et

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TR TAET AT

2019 ZE-NE
Trade and bills payables BHRNTIARENRE - 109,492 - 109,492
Finandcial liabilities included in SEAEMENFIENERTER

other payables and accruals WIS asE - 31,949 - 31,949
Interest-bearing bank borrowings  FHEIRITIER 25,415 59,386 - 84,801
Lease liabilities HEBE - 1,686 580 2,266

25,415 202,513 580 228,508

Included in interest-bearing bank borrowings are term ARIRTERTREETHER  HEFHETE

loans of which the loan agreements contain a repayment
on demand clause giving the banks the unconditional right
to call in the loans at any time and therefore, for the
purpose of the above maturity profile, the total amount is
classified as “on demand”.

Notwithstanding the above clause, the directors do not
believe that the loans will be called in their entirety within
12 months, and they consider that the loans will be repaid
in accordance with the maturity dates as set out in the
loan agreements. This evaluation was made considering:
the financial position of the Group at the date of approval
of the financial statements; the lack of events of default,
and the fact that the Group has made all previously
scheduled repayments on time. In accordance with the
terms of the loans which contain a repayment on demand
clause, the maturity profile of those loans as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments and ignoring the effect of any
repayment on demand clause, is as follows:

RAREIER IR B TRITEGIENR
PEAIR REWESK - Bt - 3 Bl 2 B0 M
5 ORERDNEEOBER [HEREE] -

BRBALGER  EFATHEZERGRER
BT ZEARNBRER  MEFRRZET R
BB 2R ER - WA A2 EEBR
R AKERYHRRELAE B ZFHI
M WEEOEM  RAKELR —BRREE
RIKEFER - RIFEIFARBFERGEHZER
MR B TRARERKERGRR 2 E  RIB
ERIHARBRIRN R - R FE RN WS BRE 2 5
HERMT

At 31 December 2020

RZE_ZTF+=-A=+—H

At 31 December 2019 R-E—NF+=-_A=1+—H 20,637 5,647 26,284
BRESEEERERAA
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Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders or
raise new capital from its investors. The Group is required
to comply with certain externally imposed capital
requirements set out in certain of its bank loan
agreements/bank facility letters. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 31
December 2019.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is
total debt divided by total equity. Total debt includes
interest-bearing bank borrowings.

The gearing ratio as at the end of the reporting periods are
as follows:

BEXREHE
AEBEEEANTIREBNARERNEE#R
FEEEESD  WREARBBNERLLE - UXF
EBRFREARRER -

752 I8 R R AR VI O S B T B B N R I A

BRAFREOREKALEEEETERN - KAE
EEESTE TRITER D BT B SR
RS FINPENNERRE - REBE-Z=F
F+-_A=+—-BER=_ZE—NF+=-A=1+—
BIEFE  EEEANEEZ  BERSRFHES
@Jo

A S B P M K (B AR R T I DA M 35
BRAAK - BT BIEBRITER -

RBERRZEEABLEEHTIMT

2019

—T-hNF

HK$'000

FHET

Interest-bearing bank borrowings sHESRITER 84,236

Total debt BIER 84,236

Total equity B 534,852

Gearing ratio BEBELX 0.2
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36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 36. XARMBEMRRE
THE COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of RMEARER AT BHRAROER AT
the Company at the end of the reporting period is as
follows:
2020 2019
i —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&T T
NON-CURRENT ASSET FRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—HERBRAF/IRE 1
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Due from subsidiaries JE W BT JE A R 5RIE 71,055 70,648
Prepayments TEFRIE 286 428
Cash and cash equivalents BeRESZEEY 164 371
Total current assets MEEEMRE 71,505 71,447
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBBE
Other payables and accruals Hib R IB R EFTE R 1,063 1,052
Due to a subsidiary FEAS— b B A RIFk IR 9,253 3,048
Total current liabilities B BEERE 10,316 4,100
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 61,189 67,347
Net assets BEFE 61,190 67,348
EQUITY B
Issued capital BEITRA 2,400 2,400
Reserves (note) & (M) 58,790 64,948
Total equity B 61,190 67,348

BREEEERERAA
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Note: B3 -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RARREEBRZENT -
Retained
Share profits/
premium (accumulated
account losses) Total
REBEF,
IR A3 EE R (REHEE) #BEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FA&T
At 1 January 2019 R=ZT—h&—HA—H 62,609 (9,348) 53,261
Profit and total comprehensive income FRRMNREENEARE
for the year - 26,087 26,087
2018 final dividend —E-N\FRERKRS - (14,400) (14,400)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 R-ZE—NF+_A=+—HK
—E=-TF—H—H 62,609 2,339 64,948
Loss and total comprehensive loss FAERBREEEBIERE
for the year - (6,158) (6,158)
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-_ZTF+_H=+—H 62,609 (3,819) 58,790

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 24 March 2021.

148 Yan Tat Group Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2020

MHERRERN - E-—FE=F -t NEEES
SRR T -



! @ 'f'hs&im | Report is print
| %@ ABRIR AR EN




	封面
	目錄
	公司資料
	主席報告
	財務摘要
	財務概要
	管理層討論及分析
	董事及高級管理層簡歷
	企業管治報告
	董事會報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益表
	綜合全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	財務報表附註

	封底



